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[ LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS ]

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

DEAR SHAREHOLDER:
Barnes & Noble achieved solid results in 2005, despite a lack of blockbuster titles in the adult
hardcover category for the second consecutive year. Strong expense controls and expanding gross
margins drove record earnings. Tight management of inventories helped produce record operating
cash flows. Store sales increased 6.0% from the prior year and comparable-store sales grew 2.9% for
the year, without any advertising expenditures or additional coupon promotions. Earnings per share
from continuing operations increased 21% year-over-year.
Our ability to deliver significant value to our shareholders and grow our business in the challenging
environment for new book content underscores the stability and resilience of our industry and the
soundness of our strategy, which emphasizes a vast selection of titles. It also reflects the power of the
Barnes & Noble brand, which continues to be the benchmark for excellence, not only in bookselling,
but for retailing overall. In 2005, Barnes & Noble was ranked the No. 1 retail brand for quality for
the fourth consecutive year by Harris Interactive™.
2005 was also the first full year that we operated as a simpler company, following the spin-off
of GameStop and the merger with Barnes & Noble.com in 2004. This simplicity enabled our
organization to be more focused on our core book business and provided greater clarity in our
financial statements for our investors.
Sales growth of children’s books was strong throughout the year. This segment of our business is
growing across the board, and for the first time we have listed our children’s bestsellers as a separate
category in “Barnes & Noble’s 2005 Bestsellers” at the end of this report. J.K. Rowling’s Harry
Potter and the Half-Blood Prince, was the runaway blockbuster of the year. First-day sales at
Barnes & Noble increased 40% over first-day sales of the author’s previous book, Harry Potter and
the Order of the Phoenix. We sold 1.3 million copies of the new book in the first 48 hours of its
release. Other popular children’s authors include Christopher Paolini, Ann Brashares, and Lemony
Snicket. For example, we sold almost 655,000 copies of Paolini’s Eldest and Eragon in 2005 and
almost one million copies of three books by Brashares (The Sisterhood of the Traveling Pants, The
Second Summer of the Sisterhood, and Girls in Pants).
In the adult category, popular writers such as James Patterson, Anne Rice, David Baldacci, and
Nicholas Sparks performed well. During the holiday season, top non-fiction titles included Doris
Kearns Goodwin’s Team of Rivals, Jimmy Carter’s Our Endangered Values, John Grogan’s
Marley & Me and Thomas Friedman’s The World is Flat. The bestselling gift book was Silver Spoon,
the bible of Italian cooking.
We continue to enhance our customers’ experience through innovation. For example, in 2005, we
launched the latest generation of our BookMaster system, an easy-to-use technology that enables
more efficient training of our booksellers and more precise information on the availability of titles
for our customers.
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During 2005, we opened 27 Barnes & Noble stores, including a new location in Morgantown, West
Virginia, giving us a presence in all 50 states. We ended the year with 681 stores. On a net basis, we
added 497,000 square feet of space to our store base during the year. We closed 36 B. Dalton stores,
ending the year with 118 stores.
We completed construction of our new 1.1 million-square-foot distribution center in New Jersey.
This new center, which will be fully operational in 2006, has state-of-the-art technology that enables
us to more efficiently and profitably handle fulfillment for our stores and Internet customers. We also
introduced a more advanced data warehouse that allows us to optimize the management of our
supply chain. This system gives us more efficient visibility into our in-stock positions, enabling us to
keep closer control of inventory levels and supports our goal of maximizing sales.
Barnes & Noble.com continued to be a strong contributor to our overall success, achieving year-overyear sales growth of 5%. Independent market commentary reflects the high quality of our online
capability: Barnes & Noble.com continues to be the No. 1 online bookseller for quality among
e-commerce companies, according to the latest EquiTrend Survey™, conducted by Harris Interactive™.
In the American Consumer Satisfaction Index, a leading industry benchmark of customer satisfaction
compiled by the University of Michigan, Barnes & Noble.com achieved the highest rating among
e-commerce companies. In addition, Barnes & Noble.com continues to receive important recognition
in other Web measurement studies, including high marks for reliability in Keynote Systems, Inc.’s
2005 Service Level Rankings for Online Retailers.
We ended 2005 with the strongest balance sheet in our company’s history, and we utilized our excess
cash in 2005 to fully repay our $245 million term loan. At year-end, we had no outstanding debt and
$373 million of cash.
Consistent with our ongoing commitment to create value for our shareholders, we acquired 7.7
million shares of the company’s stock for $282.7 million and issued two cash dividends of $0.15 per
share, for a total of approximately $20 million.
Looking ahead, we will continue to leverage our multi-channel strategy, enhancing our customers’
experience no matter how they choose to visit us, whether online or in our stores. We plan to open
30 to 40 stores this year, a target that will give us the flexibility to upgrade existing locations while
we also enter new markets.
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Barnes & Noble, Inc.

Our focus on delivering exceptional service to our customers is unwavering. Our consistently high
customer satisfaction levels are the direct result of the hard work of our more than 40,000
booksellers, whose dedication to being the best is unmatched in retailing.
We thank our shareholders for their continued support and we remain focused on consistently
delivering outstanding value to them. In 2005, our stock price increased 30%. Over the last five
years, Barnes & Noble stock has increased 65% percent, with a total return to shareholders of 135%.
We are committed to building on our success in 2006.

Sincerely,

Leonard Riggio
Chairman
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF
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Barnes & Noble, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Company)

set forth on the following pages should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
included elsewhere in this report. The Company’s fiscal year is comprised of 52 or 53 weeks, ending on the Saturday
closest to the last day of January. The Statement of Operations Data for the 52 weeks ended January 28, 2006 (fiscal
2005), 52 weeks ended January 29, 2005 (fiscal 2004) and 52 weeks ended January 31, 2004 (fiscal 2003) and the
Balance Sheet Data as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 are derived from, and are qualified by reference to,
audited consolidated financial statements which are included elsewhere in this report. The Statement of Operations
Data for the 52 weeks ended February 1, 2003 (fiscal 2002) and 52 weeks ended February 2, 2002 (fiscal 2001) and
the Balance Sheet Data as of January 31, 2004, February 1, 2003 and February 2, 2002 are derived from audited
consolidated financial statements not included in this report.
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2005

2004

2003(1)

2002

2001

4,356,611
141,584
439,657
165,152

4,121,398
176,490
419,821
155,886

3,860,347
221,020
151,229
139,581

3,574,909
260,024
—
81,611

3,359,464
310,303
—
79,225

Total sales
Cost of sales and occupancy

5,103,004
3,533,009

4,873,595
3,386,619

4,372,177
3,060,462

3,916,544
2,731,588

3,748,992
2,611,674

Gross profit
Selling and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Pre-opening expenses
Investment impairment charge(3)

1,569,995
1,134,276
172,957
10,938
—

1,486,976
1,052,345
181,553
8,862
—

1,311,715
910,448
166,825
8,668
—

1,184,956
816,597
154,844
11,933
25,328

1,137,318
773,514
142,040
10,355
—

Operating profit
Interest expense, net and amortization
of deferred financing fees(4)
Debt redemption charge(5)
Equity in net loss of Barnes & Noble.com(1)
Other expense(6)

251,824

244,216

225,774

176,254

211,409

(1,415)
—
—
—

(11,028)
(14,582)
—
—

(20,944)
—
(14,311)
—

(22,136)
—
(26,795)
(16,498)

(16,882)
—
(88,378)
(11,730)

Earnings before taxes and minority interest
Income taxes

250,409
102,042

218,606
94,001

190,519
78,779

110,825
44,609

94,419
39,184

Earnings before minority interest
Minority interest(7)

148,367
(1,686)

124,605
(1,230)

111,740
(536)

66,216
—

55,235
—

Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations (net of income tax)

146,681
—

123,375
20,001

111,204
40,571

66,216
33,262

55,235
8,562

Fiscal Year
(In thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Sales
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores
Barnes & Noble.com(1)
Other(2)

$

Net earnings

$

146,681

143,376

151,775

99,478

63,797

Basic earnings per common share
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations

$

2.17
—

1.79
0.29

1.69
0.61

1.00
0.50

0.83
0.13

Net earnings

$

2.17

2.08

2.30

1.50

0.96

Diluted earnings per common share
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations

$

2.03
—

1.68
0.25

1.57
0.50

0.99
0.40

0.82
0.11

Net earnings

$

2.03

1.93

2.07

1.39

0.93

Dividends paid per share

$

0.30

—

—

—

—

67,560
72,150

69,018
75,696

65,989
77,105

66,362
77,680

66,393
77,839

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted
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2005

2004

2003(1)

2002

2001

OTHER OPERATING DATA:
Number of stores
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

681
118

666
154

647
195

628
258

591
305

Total

799

820

842

886

896

Comparable store sales increase (decrease)(8)
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

2.9%
0.9

3.1%
(2.2)

3.2%
(2.0)

0.0%
(6.4)

2.7%
(3.7)

Fiscal Year
(In thousands, except per share data)

Capital expenditures

$

187,167

184,885

130,103

184,559

187,300

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets
Long-term debt

$
$

3,164,132
-

3,318,389
245,000

3,812,036
300,000

3,266,303
300,000

2,872,392
449,000

(1)

Fiscal 2003 includes the results of operations of
barnesandnoble.com llc (Barnes & Noble.com) from
September 15, 2003, the date the Company acquired a
controlling interest in Barnes & Noble.com. Prior to the
acquisition date, the Company accounted for the results
of Barnes & Noble.com under the equity method of
accounting. See Note 3 to the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

(2)

Includes primarily Calendar Club L.L.C. (Calendar Club)
(for all periods presented) and third-party sales of Sterling
Publishing Co., Inc. (from its acquisition in January
2003).

(3)

In fiscal 2002, the Company recorded a non-cash charge
to operating earnings to write down its investments in
Gemstar-TV Guide International, Inc. and Indigo Books
& Music Inc. to their fair market value.

(4)

Interest expense for fiscal 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and
2001 is net of interest income of $7,013, $3,461, $726,
$1,501 and $1,196, respectively.

(5)

One-time charge associated with the redemption of the
Company’s convertible subordinated notes in fiscal 2004.

(6)

In fiscal 2002, the Company determined that a decrease
in value in certain of its equity investments occurred
which was other than temporary. As a result, other
expense of $16,498 in fiscal 2002 includes the
recognition of losses of $11,485 in excess of what would
otherwise have been recognized by application of the
equity method in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of
Accounting for Investments in Common Stock”. The
$16,498 loss in other expense was primarily comprised of
$8,489 attributable to iUniverse.com, $5,081 attributable
to BOOK® magazine and $2,351 attributable to enews,
inc. Included in other expense in fiscal 2001 is a loss of
$12,066 from the Company’s equity investments.

(7)

Minority interest represents the approximate 26%
outside interest in Calendar Club.

(8)

Comparable store sales increase (decrease) is calculated
on a 52-week basis, and includes sales of stores that have
been open for 15 months.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Barnes & Noble, Inc.’s (Barnes & Noble or the
Company) fiscal year is comprised of 52 or 53 weeks,
ending on the Saturday closest to the last day of
January. As used in this section, “fiscal 2006”
represents the 53 weeks ending February 3, 2007,
“fiscal 2005” represents the 52 weeks ended January
28, 2006, “fiscal 2004” represents the 52 weeks ended
January 29, 2005 and “fiscal 2003” represents the 52
weeks ended January 31, 2004.

GENERAL
The Company is the nation’s largest bookseller1, and as
of January 28, 2006 operated 799 bookstores and a
Web site. Of the 799 bookstores, 681 operate primarily
under the Barnes & Noble Booksellers trade name (27
of which were opened in fiscal 2005) and 118 operate
primarily under the B. Dalton Bookseller trade name.
Barnes & Noble conducts the online part of its business
through barnesandnoble.com llc (Barnes &
Noble.com), one of the largest sellers of books on the
Internet. Through Sterling Publishing Co., Inc.
(Sterling), the Company is a leading general trade book
publisher. Additionally, the Company owns an
approximate 74% interest in Calendar Club L.L.C.
(Calendar Club), an operator of seasonal kiosks. The
Company employed approximately 39,000 full- and
part-time employees as of January 28, 2006.
Barnes & Noble stores are located in all 50 states and
the District of Columbia as of January 28, 2006. With
40 years of bookselling experience, management has a
strong sense of customers’ changing needs and the
Company leads book retailing with a “community
store” concept. Barnes & Noble’s typical store offers a
comprehensive title base, a café, a children’s section, a
music department, a magazine section and a calendar of
ongoing events, including author appearances and
children’s activities, that make each Barnes & Noble
store an active part of its community.
Barnes & Noble stores range in size from 10,000 to
60,000 square feet depending upon market size with an
overall average store size of 25,000 square feet. Each
store features an authoritative selection of books,
ranging from 60,000 to 200,000 unique titles. The
comprehensive title selection is diverse and tailored to
each store location to reflect local interests. In addition,
Barnes & Noble emphasizes books published by small
1

Based upon sales reported in trade publications and public filings.

B a r n e s

&

N o b l e ,

I n c .

and independent publishers and university presses.
Bestsellers (the “top ten” highest selling hardcover
fiction, hardcover non-fiction and trade paperback
titles) typically represent between 3% and 5% of Barnes
& Noble store sales. Complementing this extensive instore selection, all Barnes & Noble stores provide
customers with on-site access to the millions of books
available to online shoppers while offering an option to
have the book sent to the store or shipped directly to the
customer through the Barnes & Noble.com delivery
system. All Barnes & Noble stores are equipped with its
proprietary BookMaster in-store operating system,
which enhances the Company’s merchandisereplenishment system, resulting in high in-stock
positions and productivity at the store level through
efficiencies in receiving, cashiering and returns
processing. The Company has integrated the
BookMaster system used in its stores with Barnes &
Noble.com so that its customers share the same
experience across both channels.
During fiscal 2005, the Company added 0.5 million
square feet to the Barnes & Noble store base, bringing
the total square footage to 16.9 million square feet, a
3% increase over the prior year. Barnes & Noble stores
contributed approximately 85% of the Company’s total
sales in fiscal 2005. The Company plans to open
between 30 and 40 Barnes & Noble stores in fiscal
2006, which are expected to average 28,000 square feet
in size.
At the end of fiscal 2005, the Company operated 118 B.
Dalton bookstores in 37 states and the District of
Columbia. B. Dalton bookstores employ merchandising
strategies that target the mainstream consumer book
market, offering a wide range of bestsellers and generalinterest titles. Most B. Dalton bookstores range in size
from 2,000 to 6,000 square feet, and while they are
appropriate to the size of adjacent mall tenants, the
opening of book superstores in nearby locations
continues to have a significant adverse impact on B.
Dalton bookstores.
The Company is continuing its controlled descent in the
number of its smaller format B. Dalton bookstores in
response to declining sales attributable primarily to
book superstore competition. Part of the Company’s
strategy has been to close underperforming stores,
which has resulted in the closing of 849 B. Dalton
bookstores since 1989.
On September 15, 2003, the Company completed its
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[ MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS continued ]

acquisition of all of Bertelsmann AG’s (Bertelsmann)
interest in barnesandnoble.com inc. (bn.com) and
Barnes & Noble.com. As a result of the acquisition,
the Company increased its economic interest in Barnes
& Noble.com from approximately 38% to
approximately 75%. On May 27, 2004, the Company
completed a merger (the Merger) of bn.com with a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Merger
was approved by the shareholders of bn.com at a
special meeting held on May 27, 2004. As a result of
the Merger, bn.com became a privately held company,
wholly owned by the Company.
Barnes & Noble.com sells books, music and movies,
and, to a lesser extent, used books, gifts, educational
games, toys and video games. With access to one of the
industry’s largest in-stock inventories of new books,
Barnes & Noble.com can offer fast delivery throughout
the U.S. Barnes & Noble.com’s unique service,
“Fast&Free Delivery,” enables customers in the
continental U.S. to receive their deliveries within three
business days, with no delivery charge on purchases of
$25 and over. Visited by millions of users each month,
Barnes & Noble.com has shipped products to
customers in 230 countries since its inception in 1997.
Barnes & Noble.com provides exclusive content
features such as “Meet the Writers,” “What America’s
Reading,” and audio and video author interviews,
online reading groups, as well as third-party reviews,
first chapters and table of contents, and thousands of
music clips and video trailers.
In the fourth quarter 2005 American Customer
Satisfaction Index compiled by the University of
Michigan, Barnes & Noble.com received the highest
rating in the e-commerce category for the second year in
a row. This annual survey is recognized as the industry’s
leading indicator of customer satisfaction. According
to the comScore MediaMetrix December 2005 report,
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Barnes & Noble.com’s site was the twenty-first mosttrafficked shopping destination, as measured by the
number of unique visitors.
The Company’s subsidiary Sterling is a leading general
trade book publisher. Sterling’s active title list comprises
over 5,000 titles, and publishes several hundred new titles
each year. Sterling’s publication list is particularly extensive
in “books for enthusiasts,” categories that include mind
enhancement, puzzles and games, crafts, home repair and
remodeling, woodworking, photography, and wines and
spirits. Sterling’s list comprises books that it originates itself,
purchases from domestic and international book packagers
and those that it distributes for other publishers.
In fiscal 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved an overall plan for the complete disposition of
all of its Class B common stock in GameStop Corp.
(GameStop), the Company’s former video game
operating segment. This disposition was completed in
two steps. The first step was the sale of 6,107,338
shares of GameStop Class B common stock held by the
Company to GameStop (Stock Sale) for an aggregate
consideration of $111.5 million. The Stock Sale was
completed on October 1, 2004. The second step in the
disposition was the spin-off by the Company of its
remaining 29,901,662 shares of GameStop’s Class B
common stock (Spin-Off). The Spin-Off was completed
on November 12, 2004 with the distribution of
0.424876232 of a share of GameStop Class B common
stock as a tax-free distribution on each outstanding
share of the Company’s common stock to the
Company’s stockholders of record as of the close of
business on November 2, 2004. As a result of the Stock
Sale and the Spin-Off, GameStop is no longer a
subsidiary of the Company. The disposition of all of the
Company’s stockholdings in GameStop resulted in the
Company presenting all historical results of operations
of GameStop as discontinued operations.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year

2005

2004

2003

SALES
(in thousands)

$

5,103,004

4,873,595

4,372,177

EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(in thousands)

$

146,681

123,375

111,204

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

$

2.03

1.68

1.57

2.9%
0.9

3.1%
( 2.2)

3.2%
( 2.0)

STORES OPENED
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

27
—

32
—

31
—

Total

27

32

31

STORES CLOSED
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

12
36

13
41

12
63

Total

48

54

75

NUMBER OF STORES OPEN AT YEAR END
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

681
118

666
154

647
195

Total

799

820

842

SQUARE FEET OF SELLING SPACE AT YEAR END
(in millions)
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

16.9
0.5

16.4
0.6

15.8
0.8

Total

17.4

17.0

16.6

COMPARABLE STORE SALES INCREASE (DECREASE)(a)
Barnes & Noble stores
B. Dalton stores

(a)

Comparable store sales are determined using stores open at least 15 months.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage relationship that certain items bear to total sales
of the Company:
Fiscal Year

2005

Sales
Cost of sales and occupancy

100.0%
69.2

100.0%
69.5

100.0%
70.0

30.8
22.2
3.4
0.2

30.5
21.6
3.7
0.2

30.0
20.8
3.8
0.2

Operating margin
Interest expense, net and amortization of deferred financing fees
Debt redemption charge
Equity in net loss of Barnes & Noble.com

4.9
—
—
—

5.0
(0.2)
(0.3)
—

5.2
(0.5)
—
(0.3)

Earnings before income taxes and minority interest
Income taxes

4.9
2.0

4.5
1.9

4.4
1.8

Income before minority interest
Minority interest

2.9
—

2.6
(0.1)

2.6
(0.1)

Income from continuing operations

2.9%

2.5%

2.5%

Gross margin
Selling and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Pre-opening expenses

2004

2003
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52 WEEKS ENDED JANUARY 28, 2006
COMPARED WITH 52 WEEKS ENDED
JANUARY 29, 2005
Sales
The Company’s sales increased $229.4 million, or
4.7%, during fiscal 2005 to $5.103 billion from $4.874
billion during fiscal 2004.
This increase was
attributable to a $235.2 million increase in sales at
Barnes & Noble stores and a $19.8 million increase in
sales at Barnes & Noble.com, offset by a $34.9 million
decrease in sales at B. Dalton stores.
Barnes & Noble store sales increased $235.2 million, or
5.7%, during fiscal 2005 to $4.357 billion from $4.121
billion during fiscal 2004 and accounted for 85.4% of
total Company sales. The 5.7% increase in Barnes &
Noble store sales was attributable to an increase in
comparable store sales of 2.9%, coupled with the
opening of 27 new stores during fiscal 2005, which
contributed to a 3.0% increase in square footage.
In fiscal 2005, B. Dalton sales declined 19.8% and
represented 2.8% of total Company sales. The decrease
was primarily a result of 36 store closings and a 27.7%
reduction in square footage, offset by an increase in
comparable store sales of 0.9% in fiscal 2005.

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

than direct purchases from publishers, higher
purchases through the Company’s distribution
network, reduced sales of lower margin music and
increased sales volume leveraging fixed occupancy
costs in the Barnes & Noble stores, offset by the
deep discounted selling price on J. K. Rowling’s
Harry Potter and the Half-Blood Prince book.

Selling and Administrative Expenses
Selling and administrative expenses increased $81.9
million, or 7.8%, to $1.134 billion in fiscal 2005 from
$1.052 billion in fiscal 2004. As a percentage of sales,
selling and administrative expenses increased to 22.2%
in fiscal 2005 from 21.6% in fiscal 2004. This increase
was primarily due to a $12.7 million charge related to
the impairment of certain store assets, charges
associated with litigation of approximately $6.9 million
and $3.6 million related to stock compensation costs
associated with the issuance of restricted stock.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization decreased $8.6 million,
or 4.7%, to $173.0 million in fiscal 2005 from $181.6
million in fiscal 2004. This decrease was primarily due
to lower amortization of the Barnes & Noble.com
customer lists and relationships, and certain Barnes &
Noble store assets becoming fully depreciated.

Pre-Opening Expenses
In fiscal 2005, the Company opened 27 Barnes &
Noble stores and closed 12, bringing its total number of
Barnes & Noble stores to 681 with 16.9 million square
feet. The Company closed 36 B. Dalton stores, ending
the period with 118 B. Dalton stores and 0.5 million
square feet. As of January 28, 2006, the Company
operated 799 stores in the fifty states and the District of
Columbia.

Cost of Sales and Occupancy
The Company’s cost of sales and occupancy includes
costs such as merchandise costs, distribution center
costs (including payroll, supplies, depreciation and
other operating expenses), rental expense, common
area maintenance, merchant association dues and leaserequired advertising, partially offset by landlord tenant
allowances amortized over the life of the lease.
Cost of sales and occupancy increased $146.4 million,
or 4.3%, to $3.533 billion in fiscal 2005 from $3.387
billion in fiscal 2004. As a percentage of sales, cost of
sales and occupancy decreased to 69.2% in fiscal 2005
from 69.5% in fiscal 2004. This decrease was due to
less purchases from book wholesalers at higher costs

Pre-opening expenses increased $2.1 million, or 23.4%,
in fiscal 2005 to $10.9 million from $8.9 million in
fiscal 2004. The increase in pre-opening expenses was
primarily due to the timing of new Barnes & Noble
stores opened during fiscal 2005 and those to be opened
during the beginning of fiscal 2006.

Operating Profit
The Company’s consolidated operating profit increased
$7.6 million, or 3.1%, to $251.8 million in fiscal 2005
from $244.2 million in fiscal 2004. This increase was
primarily due to the matters discussed above.

Interest Expense, Net and Amortization of
Deferred Financing Fees
Interest expense, net of interest income, and
amortization of deferred financing fees, decreased $9.6
million, or 87.2%, to $1.4 million in fiscal 2005 from
$11.0 million in fiscal 2004. The decrease was primarily
due to reduced average borrowings, the repayment of
the Company’s prior outstanding $245 million term
loan and interest income increasing $3.5 million, or
100.0%, to $7.0 million in fiscal 2005 from $3.5
million in fiscal 2004.
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Debt Redemption Charge
The Company completed the redemption of its $300.0
million outstanding 5.25% convertible subordinated
notes due 2009 in the second quarter of fiscal 2004.
The write-off of the unamortized portion of the
deferred financing fees from the issuance of the notes
and the redemption premium resulted in a charge of
$14.6 million. The debt redemption charge of $14.6
million in fiscal 2004 was comprised of an $8.5 million
redemption premium and the write-off of $6.1 million
of unamortized deferred financing fees from the
issuance of the notes.

Income Taxes
Barnes & Noble’s effective tax rate in fiscal 2005
decreased to 40.75% compared with 43.00% during
fiscal 2004. The decrease in the effective tax rate was
primarily due to adjustments in fiscal 2004 related to
prior year taxes.

Minority Interest
Minority interest was $1.7 million in fiscal 2005
compared with $1.2 million in fiscal 2004, and relates
to the approximate 26% outside interest in Calendar
Club L.L.C. (Calendar Club).

Income From Discontinued Operations
On October 1, 2004, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved an overall plan for the complete
disposition of all of the Company’s Class B common
stock in GameStop Corp., the Company’s former video
game operating segment. The plan was completed in
November 2004 with the distribution to the Company’s
stockholders of the GameStop Class B common stock.
As a result, GameStop is no longer a subsidiary of the
Company and, accordingly, the Company is presenting
all historical results of operations of GameStop as
discontinued operations.

Earnings
As a result of the factors discussed above, the Company
reported consolidated net earnings of $146.7 million
(or $2.03 per share) during fiscal 2005 compared with
net earnings of $143.4 million (or $1.93 per share)
during fiscal 2004. Components of diluted earnings per
share (EPS) are as follows:
Fiscal Year

2005

2004

EPS from continuing operations
EPS from discontinued operations

$ 2.03
—

1.68
0.25

Consolidated EPS

$ 2.03

1.93
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52 WEEKS ENDED JANUARY 29, 2005
COMPARED WITH 52 WEEKS ENDED
JANUARY 31, 2004
Sales
The Company’s sales increased $501.4 million, or
11.5%, during fiscal 2004 to $4.874 billion from
$4.372 billion during fiscal 2003. The increase in sales
was primarily attributable to a $261.1 million increase
in sales at Barnes & Noble stores and the increase of
$268.6 million in sales at Barnes & Noble.com. Barnes
& Noble store sales increased $261.1 million, or 6.8%,
during fiscal 2004 to $4.121 billion from $3.860 billion
during fiscal 2003 and accounted for 84.6% of total
Company sales. The 6.8% increase in Barnes & Noble
store sales was attributable to an increase in comparable
store sales of 3.1% coupled with the opening of 32 new
stores during fiscal 2004, which contributed to a 3.7%
increase in square footage. This increase was partially
offset by declining sales of B. Dalton, due to 41 store
closings and a comparable store sales decline of (2.2)%
in fiscal 2004. Barnes & Noble.com sales increased
$268.6 million primarily due to the full year
consolidation of Barnes & Noble.com in fiscal 2004
compared with a partial year in fiscal 2003 resulting
from the Company’s acquisition of a controlling interest
in Barnes & Noble.com on September 15, 2003.

Cost of Sales and Occupancy
The Company’s cost of sales and occupancy includes
costs such as merchandise costs, distribution center
costs (including payroll, supplies, depreciation and
other operating expenses), rental expense, common area
maintenance, merchant association dues and leaserequired advertising partially offset by landlord tenant
allowances amortized over the life of the lease.
Cost of sales and occupancy increased $326.2 million,
or 10.7%, to $3.387 billion in fiscal 2004 from $3.060
billion in fiscal 2003, primarily due to the inclusion of
Barnes & Noble.com’s cost of sales and occupancy for
the full period in fiscal 2004 compared with a partial
period in fiscal 2003. As a percentage of sales, cost of
sales and occupancy decreased to 69.5% in fiscal 2004
from 70.0% in fiscal 2003. This decrease was primarily
attributable to the reduction in bestseller markdowns
and leverage on fixed occupancy costs.

Selling and Administrative Expenses
Selling and administrative expenses increased $141.9
million, or 15.6%, to $1,052.3 million in fiscal 2004
from $910.4 million in fiscal 2003, partially due to the
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inclusion of Barnes & Noble.com’s selling and
administrative expenses for the full period in fiscal 2004
compared with a partial period in fiscal 2003. As a
percentage of sales, selling and administrative expenses
increased to 21.6% in fiscal 2004 from 20.8% in fiscal
2003. This increase was partially due to the inclusion of
Barnes & Noble.com’s selling and administrative
expenses for the full period in fiscal 2004 compared
with a partial period in fiscal 2003.

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

million principal amount of the notes into 545,821
shares of common stock of the Company, plus cash in
lieu of fractional shares, at a price of $32.512 per share.
The Company redeemed the balance of $282.3 million
principal amount of the notes at an aggregate
redemption price, together with accrued interest and
redemption premium, of $295.0 million. The write-off
of the unamortized portion of the deferred financing
fees from the issuance of the notes and the redemption
premium resulted in a charge of $14.6 million.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization increased $14.7 million,
or 8.8%, to $181.6 million in fiscal 2004 from $166.8
million in fiscal 2003. This increase was due to the
inclusion of Barnes & Noble.com’s depreciation and
amortization for the full period in fiscal 2004 compared
with a partial period in fiscal 2003, offset by a
reduction in depreciation and amortization in the
Barnes & Noble stores.

Pre-Opening Expenses
Pre-opening expenses increased $0.2 million, or 2.2%,
in fiscal 2004 to $8.9 million from $8.7 million in fiscal
2003. The slight increase in pre-opening expenses was
primarily the result of opening 32 new Barnes & Noble
stores during fiscal 2004, compared with 31 new Barnes
& Noble stores during fiscal 2003.

Operating Profit
The Company’s consolidated operating profit increased
$18.4 million, or 8.2%, to $244.2 million in fiscal 2004
from $225.8 million in fiscal 2003. Operating profit
increased $45.6 million, or 19.6%, in fiscal 2004
excluding the operating losses of Barnes & Noble.com
for the full period in fiscal 2004 compared with a
partial period in fiscal 2003.

Interest Expense, Net and Amortization of
Deferred Financing Fees
Interest expense, net of interest income, and
amortization of deferred financing fees, decreased $9.9
million, or 47.4%, to $11.0 million in fiscal 2004 from
$20.9 million in fiscal 2003. The decrease was primarily
the result of the redemption of the Company’s $300.0
million 5.25% convertible subordinated notes, which
resulted in a reduction of the Company’s average
borrowings and interest rate.

Debt Redemption Charge
In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company
completed the redemption of its $300.0 million
outstanding 5.25% convertible subordinated notes due
2009. Holders of the notes converted a total of $17.7

Equity in Net Loss of Barnes & Noble.com
The Company accounted for its approximate 38%
economic interest in Barnes & Noble.com under the
equity method through September 15, 2003. Equity
losses in Barnes & Noble.com were $14.3 million in
fiscal 2003.

Income Taxes
Barnes & Noble’s effective tax rate in fiscal 2004
increased to 43.00% compared with 41.35% during
fiscal 2003. The increase in the effective tax rate was
primarily due to adjustments in fiscal 2004 related to
prior year taxes.

Minority Interest
Minority interest was $1.2 million in fiscal 2004
compared with $0.5 million in fiscal 2003, and relates
to the approximate 26% outside interest in Calendar
Club L.L.C. (Calendar Club).

Income From Discontinued Operations
On October 1, 2004, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved an overall plan for the complete
disposition of all of its Class B common stock in
GameStop, the Company’s former video game
operating segment. This disposition was completed in
two steps. The first step was the sale of 6,107,338
shares of GameStop Class B common stock held by the
Company to GameStop (Stock Sale) for an aggregate
consideration of $111.5 million, consisting of $37.5
million in cash and a promissory note in the principal
amount of $74.0 million, bearing interest at a rate of
5.5% per annum, payable when principal installments
are due. The Stock Sale was completed on October 1,
2004. The second step in the disposition was the spinoff by the Company of its remaining 29,901,662 shares
of GameStop’s Class B common stock (Spin-Off). The
Spin-Off was completed on November 12, 2004 with
the distribution of 0.424876232 of a share of
GameStop Class B common stock as a tax-free
distribution on each outstanding share of the
Company’s common stock to the Company’s
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stockholders of record as of the close of business on
November 2, 2004. As a result of the Stock Sale and
the Spin-Off, GameStop is no longer a subsidiary of the
Company and, accordingly, the Company will present
all historical results of operations of GameStop as
discontinued operations.

fiscal 2005, the decrease in cash flows from operating
results was primarily due to the timing of rent
payments. In fiscal 2004 and 2003, the increase in cash
flows from operating activities was primarily
attributable to improved working capital management
and an increase in net earnings.

Earnings

The weighted-average age per square foot of the
Company’s 681 Barnes & Noble stores was 7.7 years as
of January 28, 2006 and is expected to increase to
approximately 8.2 years by February 3, 2007. As the
Barnes & Noble stores continue to mature, and as the
number of new stores opened during the fiscal year
decreases as a percentage of the existing store base, the
increasing operating profits of Barnes & Noble stores
are expected to generate a greater portion of the cash
flows required for working capital, including new store
inventories, capital expenditures and other initiatives.

As a result of the factors discussed above, the
Company reported consolidated net earnings of $143.4
million (or $1.93 per share) during fiscal 2004
compared with net earnings of $151.8 million (or
$2.07 per share) during fiscal 2003. Components of
diluted earnings per share (EPS) are as follows:
Fiscal Year

EPS from continuing operations (a)
EPS from discontinued operations

2004

2003

$ 1.68
0.25

1.57
0.50

Capital Structure
Consolidated EPS
(a)

(a)

$ 1.93

2.07

Includes a one-time charge of $0.11 per share associated
with the redemption of the convertible notes in fiscal
2004.

SEASONALITY
The Company’s business, like that of many retailers, is
seasonal, with the major portion of sales and operating
profit realized during the fourth quarter which includes
the holiday selling season.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working capital requirements are generally at their
highest in the Company’s fiscal quarter ending on or
about January 31 due to the higher payments to vendors
for holiday season merchandise purchases. In addition,
the Company’s sales and merchandise inventory levels
will fluctuate from quarter to quarter as a result of the
number and timing of new store openings.
Cash and cash equivalents on hand, cash flows from
operating activities, funds available under its senior
credit facility and short-term vendor financing continue
to provide the Company with liquidity and capital
resources for store expansion, seasonal working capital
requirements and capital investments.

Cash Flow
Cash flows provided from operating activities were
$499.7 million, $532.4 million and $471.3 million
during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In

Strong cash flows from operations and a continued
emphasis on working capital management strengthened
the Company’s balance sheet in fiscal 2005.
On June 17, 2005, the Company, together with certain
of its subsidiaries, entered into a Credit Agreement (the
New Facility) with a syndicate led by Bank of America,
N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. The New
Facility replaces the Amended and Restated Credit and
Term Loan Agreement, dated as of August 10, 2004
(the Prior Facility), which consisted of a revolving credit
facility and a term loan. The revolving credit facility
portion was due to expire in May 2006 and the term
loan had a maturity date of August 10, 2009. The Prior
Facility was terminated on June 17, 2005, at which time
the prior outstanding term loan of $245.0 million was
repaid. Letters of credit issued under the Prior Facility,
which totaled approximately $30.0 million as of June
17, 2005, were transferred to become letters of credit
under the New Facility.
The New Facility provides for a maximum aggregate
borrowing amount of $850.0 million (which under
certain circumstances may be increased to $1.0 billion
at the option of the Company) and terminates on June
16, 2010. The maximum aggregate borrowing amount
may be reduced from time to time according to the
terms of the New Facility. Borrowings made pursuant to
the New Facility may be committed loans or swing line
loans, the combined sum (including any outstanding
letters of credit) of which may not exceed the maximum
borrowing amount.
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Borrowings made pursuant to the New Facility as
committed loans will bear interest, payable quarterly or,
if earlier, at the end of any interest period, at either (a)
the base rate, described in the New Facility as the higher
of Bank of America N.A.’s prime rate (7.25% as of
January 28, 2006) or the federal funds rate (4.38% as
of January 28, 2006) plus 0.50%, or (b) the Eurodollar
rate (a publicly published rate which was 4.57% as of
January 28, 2006) plus a percentage spread (ranging
from 0.750% to 1.375%) based on the Company’s
consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio. Swing line
loans bear interest at the base rate. Under the New
Facility, the Company agrees to pay a commitment
facility fee, payable quarterly, at rates that range from
0.150% to 0.300% depending on the Company’s
consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio. The payments
under the New Facility are guaranteed by material
subsidiaries of the Company.

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

stock of the Company, plus cash in lieu of fractional
shares, at a price of $32.512 per share. The Company
redeemed the balance of $282.3 million principal
amount of the notes at an aggregate redemption price,
together with accrued interest and redemption
premium, of $295.0 million. The write-off of the
unamortized portion of the deferred financing fees from
the issuance of the notes and the redemption premium
resulted in a charge of $14.6 million.
Selected information related to the Company’s term
loan, convertible subordinated notes and the New and
Prior Facilities:
Fiscal Year

2005

2004

2003

Revolving credit facility
Term loan
Convertible subordinated notes

$

—
—
—

—
245,000
—

—
—
300,000

The New Facility contains customary affirmative and
negative covenants for credit facilities of this type,
including limitations on the Company and its subsidiaries
with respect to indebtedness, liens, investments,
distributions, mergers and acquisitions, disposition of
assets, sale-leaseback transactions, and transactions with
affiliates. The New Facility permits the Company to use
proceeds of the credit loans and letters of credit for
working capital and capital expenditures and for all other
lawful corporate purposes, including payment of
dividends, acquisitions of assets, capital stock of other
companies and share repurchases, in each case to the
extent permitted in the New Facility. The New Facility also
contains financial covenants that require the Company to
maintain a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage
ratio of 1.75 and a maximum consolidated funded debt to
earnings ratio of 2.00.

Balance at end of year

$

—

245,000

300,000

$ 121,915

276,043

342,469

$ 245,000

392,700

474,150

6.91%
—

5.25%
3.78%

6.33%
5.25%

The New Facility provides for customary events of default
with corresponding grace periods, including failure to pay
any principal or interest when due, failure to comply with
covenants, any material representation or warranty made
by the Company proving to be false in any material
respect, certain bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership
events affecting the Company or its subsidiaries, defaults
relating to certain other indebtedness, imposition of
certain judgments and a change in control of the
Company (as defined in the New Facility).

The Company has no agreements to maintain
compensating balances.

On June 28, 2004, the Company completed the
redemption of its $300.0 million outstanding 5.25%
convertible subordinated notes due 2009. Holders of
the notes converted a total of $17.7 million principal
amount of the notes into 545,821 shares of common

Average balance outstanding
during the year
Maximum borrowings outstanding
during the year
Weighted average interest rate
during the year
Interest rate at end of year

Fees expensed with respect to the unused portion of the
New and Prior Facilities were $1.3 million, $1.0 million
and $1.2 million, during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
The amounts outstanding under the New and Prior
Facilities, if any, have been classified as long-term debt
based on the Company’s ability to continually maintain
principal amounts outstanding.

Capital Investment
Capital expenditures totaled $187.2 million, $184.9
million and $130.1 million during fiscal 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Capital expenditures in fiscal
2006, primarily for the opening of 30 to 40 new Barnes
& Noble stores, the maintenance of existing stores and
system enhancements for the retail stores and the Web
site, are projected to be in the range of $190.0 million
to $200.0 million, although commitment to many of
such expenditures has not yet been made.
Based on current operating levels and the store
expansion planned for the next fiscal year, management
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believes cash and cash equivalents on hand, cash flows
generated from operating activities, short-term vendor
financing and borrowing capacity under the New
Facility will be sufficient to meet the Company’s
working capital and debt service requirements, and
support the development of its short- and long-term
strategies for at least the next 12 months.

at a cost of approximately $479.0 million. The maximum
dollar value of common shares that may yet be purchased
under the current program is approximately $171.0
million as of January 28, 2006. During the first quarter of
fiscal 2006 (through March 31, 2006), the Company
repurchased 1,602,000 shares at a cost of $68.2 million.
All repurchased shares are held in treasury.

In fiscal 1999, the Board of Directors of the Company
authorized a common stock repurchase program for the
purchase of up to $250.0 million of the Company’s
common stock. The Company completed this $250.0
million repurchase program during the first quarter of
fiscal 2005. On March 24, 2005, the Company’s Board
of Directors authorized an additional share repurchase
program of up to $200.0 million of the Company’s
common stock. The Company completed this $200.0
million repurchase program during the third quarter of
fiscal 2005. On September 15, 2005, the Company’s
Board of Directors authorized a new share repurchase
program of up to $200.0 million of the Company’s
common stock.

On September 15, 2003, the Company completed its
acquisition of all of Bertelsmann AG’s (Bertelsmann)
interest in barnesandnoble.com inc. (bn.com) and
barnesandnoble.com llc (Barnes & Noble.com). The
purchase price paid by the Company was $165.4 million
(including acquisition related costs) in a combination of
cash and a note, equivalent to $2.80 per share in bn.com
or membership unit in Barnes & Noble.com. The note
issued to Bertelsmann in the amount of $82.0 million
was paid in fiscal 2003. As a result of the acquisition,
the Company increased its economic interest in Barnes
& Noble.com to approximately 75%. On May 27,
2004, the Company completed a merger (the Merger) of
bn.com with a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. The purchase price paid by the Company was
$158.8 million (including acquisition related costs).
Under the terms of the Merger, the holders of bn.com’s
outstanding common stock, other than the Company
and its subsidiaries, received $3.05 in cash for each share
that they owned. The Merger was approved by the
shareholders of bn.com at a special meeting held on May
27, 2004. As a result of the Merger, bn.com became a
privately held company, wholly owned by the Company.

Share repurchases under this program may be made
through open market and privately negotiated
transactions from time to time and in such amounts as
management deems appropriate. As of January 28,
2006, the Company repurchased 7,682,700 shares at a
cost of approximately $282.7 million under these
programs in fiscal 2005, bringing the combined total of
repurchases under these programs to 16,690,400 shares

[ MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
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Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth the Company’s contractual obligations as of January 28, 2006 (in millions):
Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations

Long-term debt
Capital lease
obligations
Operating leases
Purchase
obligations
Other long-term
liabilities reflected on the
registrant’s balance sheet
under GAAP
Total

Total

$

—

Less Than
1 Year

$

—

1-3
Years

$

—

3-5
Years

$

—

More Than
5 Years

$

—

—
2,401.3

—
344.9

—
647.4

—
563.5

—
845.5

32.9

30.4

2.0

0.3

0.2

—

—

—

—

—

$ 2,434.2

$ 375.3

$ 649.4

$ 563.8

$ 845.7

See also Note 9 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning the Company’s Pension and
Postretirement Plans.

As of January 28, 2006, the Company had no offbalance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303 of
the Regulation S-K.

application of these accounting policies involves the
exercise of judgment and use of assumptions as to future
uncertainties and, as a result, actual results could differ
from these estimates.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

MERCHANDISE INVENTORIES

The Company does not believe that inflation has had a
material effect on its net sales or results of operations.

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Cost is determined primarily by the retail
inventory method on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis
for 95% and 96% of the Company’s merchandise
inventories as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005,
respectively. The remaining merchandise inventories are
recorded based on the average cost method.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS
See Note 17 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations discusses the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. The
preparation of these financial statements require
management to make estimates and assumptions in
certain circumstances that affect amounts reported in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and
related footnotes. In preparing these financial
statements, management has made its best estimates and
judgments of certain amounts included in the financial
statements, giving due consideration to materiality. The
Company does not believe there is a great likelihood that
materially different amounts would be reported related
to the accounting policies described below. However,

Market is determined based on the estimated net
realizable value, which is generally the selling price.
Reserves for non-returnable inventory are based on the
Company’s history of liquidating non-returnable
inventory.
The Company also estimates and accrues shortage for
the period between the last physical count of inventory
and the balance sheet date. Shortage rates are estimated
and accrued based on historical rates and can be
affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in
actual shortage trends.

OTHER LONG-LIVED ASSETS
The Company’s other long-lived assets include property
and equipment and amortizable intangibles. At January
28, 2006, the Company had $806.4 million of property
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and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, and
$15.7 million of amortizable intangible assets, net of
amortization, accounting for approximately 26.0% of
the Company’s total assets. The Company reviews its
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. The
Company evaluates long-lived assets for impairment at
the individual store level, which is the lowest level at
which individual cash flows can be identified. When
evaluating long-lived assets for potential impairment,
the Company will first compare the carrying amount of
the assets to the individual store’s estimated future
undiscounted cash flows. If the estimated future cash
flows are less than the carrying amount of the assets, an
impairment loss calculation is prepared. The impairment
loss calculation compares the carrying amount of the
assets to the individual store’s fair value based on its
estimated discounted future cash flows. If required, an
impairment loss is recorded for that portion of the asset’s
carrying value in excess of fair value. Impairment losses
totaled $12.7 million, $0.0 million and $0.0 million in
fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

GOODWILL AND UNAMORTIZABLE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
At January 28, 2006, the Company had $263.7 million
of goodwill and $78.1 million of unamortizable
intangible assets (i.e. those with an indefinite useful
life), accounting for approximately 10.8% of the
Company’s total assets. SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets”, requires that goodwill and
other unamortizable intangible assets no longer be
amortized, but instead be tested for impairment at least
annually or earlier if there are impairment indicators.
The Company performs a two-step process for
impairment testing of goodwill as required by SFAS No.
142. The first step of this test, used to identify potential
impairment, compares the estimated fair value of a
reporting unit with its carrying amount. The second
step (if necessary) measures the amount of the
impairment. The Company completed its annual
impairment test on the goodwill in November 2005 and
deemed that no impairment charge was necessary. The
Company has noted no subsequent indicators of
impairment. The Company tests unamortizable
intangible assets by comparing the estimated fair value
to the carrying value of such assets. Changes in market
conditions, among other factors, could have a material
impact on these estimates.
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NEWLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
There were no accounting standards issued during the
fiscal year ended January 28, 2006 that are reasonably
likely to affect the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS
This report may contain certain forward-looking
statements (within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) and information relating to the
Company that are based on the beliefs of the
management of the Company as well as assumptions
made by and information currently available to the
management of the Company. When used in this
report, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “intend,” “plan” and similar expressions, as
they relate to the Company or the management of the
Company, identify forward-looking statements. Such
statements reflect the current views of the Company
with respect to future events, the outcome of which is
subject to certain risks, including among others general
economic and market conditions, decreased consumer
demand for the Company’s products, possible
disruptions in the Company’s computer or telephone
systems, possible work stoppages or increases in labor
costs, possible increases in shipping rates or
interruptions in shipping service, effects of competition,
possible disruptions or delays in the opening of new
stores or the inability to obtain suitable sites for new
stores, higher-than-anticipated store closing or
relocation costs, higher interest rates, the performance
of the Company’s online initiatives such as Barnes &
Noble.com, the performance and successful integration
of acquired businesses, the successful and timely
completion and integration of the Company’s new
distribution center, the success of the Company’s
strategic investments, unanticipated increases in
merchandise or occupancy costs, unanticipated adverse
litigation results or effects, and other factors which may
be outside of the Company’s control. Should one or
more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual
results or outcomes may vary materially from those
described as anticipated, believed, estimated, expected,
intended or planned. Subsequent written and oral
forward-looking statements attributable to the
Company or persons acting on its behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements
in this paragraph.
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Fiscal Year
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2005

2004

2003

$ 5,103,004
3,533,009

4,873,595
3,386,619

4,372,177
3,060,462

1,569,995

1,486,976

1,311,715

1,134,276
172,957
10,938

1,052,345
181,553
8,862

910,448
166,825
8,668

Operating profit
Interest expense (net of interest income of $7,013, $3,461
and $726, respectively) and amortization
of deferred financing fees
Debt redemption charge
Equity in net loss of Barnes & Noble.com

251,824

244,216

225,774

(1,415)
—
—

(11,028)
(14,582)
—

(20,944)
—
(14,311)

Earnings before taxes and minority interest
Income taxes

250,409
102,042

218,606
94,001

190,519
78,779

Earnings before minority interest
Minority interest

148,367
(1,686)

124,605
(1,230)

111,740
(536)

Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations (net of income tax)

146,681
—

123,375
20,001

111,204
40,571

$

146,681

143,376

151,775

$

2.17
—

1.79
0.29

1.69
0.61

$

2.17

2.08

2.30

$

2.03
—

1.68
0.25

1.57
0.50

$

2.03

1.93

2.07

67,560
72,150

69,018
75,696

65,989
77,105

(In thousands, except per share data)

Sales
Cost of sales and occupancy
Gross profit
Selling and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Pre-opening expenses

Net earnings
Basic earnings per common share
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Net earnings
Diluted earnings per common share
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Net earnings
Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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[ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS ]

(In thousands, except per share data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Merchandise inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

January 28, 2006

$

535,652
91,501
1,274,578
85,140

1,860,176

1,986,871

3,247
984,535
1,174,973

3,247
940,616
1,081,966

2,162,755
1,356,379

2,025,829
1,221,169

806,376

804,660

263,731
93,834
114,046
25,969

268,379
97,538
123,231
37,710

$ 3,164,132

3,318,389

Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Fixtures and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net property and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred taxes
Other noncurrent assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

$

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Minority interest
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock; $.001 par value; 300,000 shares authorized;
83,370 and 79,276 shares issued, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost, 16,690 and 9,008 shares, respectively
Total shareholders’ equity
Commitments and contingencies
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

January 29, 2005

372,586
99,117
1,313,997
74,476

Total current assets

Total assets

2005 Annual Report

$

828,852
683,816

745,073
580,509

1,512,668

1,325,582

—
158,035
367,531
10,057

245,000
193,743
379,180
8,942

83
1,091,018
(9,085)
512,594
(478,769)

79
985,609
(9,857)
386,134
(196,023)

1,115,841

1,165,942

—

—

3,164,132

3,318,389
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[ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES
IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ]
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Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock at
Cost

Total

73

828,522

(11,064)

373,143

(181,391)

1,009,283

—

—

—

151,775

—

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

296
128
3
2,058

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

(In thousands)

Common
Stock

Balance at February 1, 2003

$

Comprehensive earnings:
Net earnings
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (See Note 11):
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Unrealized gain on derivative instrument
Minimum pension liability
Total comprehensive earnings
Exercise of 5,063 common stock options, including
tax benefits of $18,724
Exercise of common stock options of subsidiaries, including
tax benefits of $6,202
Treasury stock acquired, 305 shares

4

71,816

—

—

(2,556)

69,264

—
—

13,981
—

—
—

—
—

—
(5,714)

13,981
(5,714)

Balance at January 31, 2004

77

914,319

524,918

(189,661)

1,241,074

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

—
—

Comprehensive earnings:
Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (See Note 11):
Foreign currency translation
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net of reclassification adjustment
Minimum pension liability
Total comprehensive earnings
Exercise of 1,875 common stock options, including
tax benefits of $11,300
Exercise of common stock options of subsidiaries,
including tax benefits of $2,363

154,260

(8,579)

143,376

—

(19)

—

—

(94)
(1,165)

—
—

—
—
142,098

2

45,197

—

—

—

45,199

—

6,911

—

—

—

6,911

Restricted stock compensation expense
Spin-off of GameStop (See Note 2)
Conversion of subordinated notes (See Note 5)
Change in reporting period of subsidiary (See Note 3)
Tax adjustments and costs attributable to the sale of
GameStop Class B shares (See Note 2)
Acquisition of partial interest in a subsidiary
of Calendar Club (See Note 8)
Treasury stock acquired, 200 shares

—
—
—
—

48
—
17,362
—

—
—
—
—

—
(265,922)
—
(1,532)

—
—
—
—

48
(265,922)
17,362
(1,532)

—

—

—

(14,706)

—

(14,706)

—
—

1,772
—

—
—

Balance at January 29, 2005

79

985,609

—

—

—
—

—
—

Comprehensive earnings:
Net earnings
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (See Note 11):
Foreign currency translation
Minimum pension liability
Total comprehensive earnings

—
(457)
1,229

—
(6,362)

386,134

(196,023)

146,681

—

—
—

—
—

1,772
(6,362)
1,165,942

147,453

Exercise of 4,068 common stock options, including
tax benefits of $39,640
Restricted stock compensation expense, including tax benefit of $64
Cash dividends paid to stockholders
Treasury stock acquired, 7,682 shares

4
—
—
—

101,779
3,630
—
—

Balance at January 28, 2006

83

1,091,018

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(9,857)

—
—

—
—
—
—
(9,085)

—
—
(20,221)
—

—
—
—
(282,746)

512,594

(478,769)

101,783
3,630
(20,221)
(282,746)
1,115,841
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Fiscal Year
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2005

2004

2003

146,681
—

143,376
20,001

151,775
40,571

Net earnings from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of deferred financing fees)
Deferred taxes
Property and equipment impairment charge
Decrease in other long-term liabilities for tenant allowances and
scheduled rent increases
Restricted stock compensation expense
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Minority interest
Debt redemption charge (deferred financing fees)
Equity in net loss of Barnes & Noble.com
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net

146,681

123,375

111,204

173,814
1,925
12,656

183,508
21,285
—

169,741
31,451
—

(8,596)
3,566
3,542
1,686
—
—
164,467

(971)
48
1,919
1,230
6,112
—
195,935

(2,036)
—
207
536
—
14,311
145,934

Net cash flows from operating activities

499,741

532,441

471,348

(187,167)
12,173
(1,289)
—
—

(184,885)
37,500
(956)
(154,427)
—

(130,103)
—
(1,430)
(140,929)
(1,474)

(176,283)

(302,768)

(273,936)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings
Net earnings from discontinued operations

$

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Payments on GameStop note receivable
Net increase in other noncurrent assets
Acquisition of consolidated subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Purchase of investments
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchase of treasury stock
Repayment of debt
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options
Cash dividends paid to shareholders
Dividend to minority interest
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Redemption of convertible subordinated notes

(282,746)
(245,000)
62,143
(20,221)
(700)
—
—

(6,362)
—
34,043
—
—
245,000
(286,497)

(5,714)
—
54,984
—
—
—
—

(486,524)

(13,816)

49,270

—
—
—

25,284
(79,280)
(113,409)

67,477
(66,496)
(28,105)

—

(167,405)

(27,124)

(163,066)
535,652

48,452
487,200

219,558
267,642

$

372,586

535,652

487,200

$

(8,595)
(39,419)
(8,216)
220,697

(10,801)
15,317
26,650
164,769

31,536
(17,287)
569
131,116

$

164,467

195,935

145,934

$
$

810
28,611

16,536
42,215

18,498
56,256

Supplemental disclosure of subsidiaries acquired:
Assets acquired, net of cash acquired
Liabilities assumed

$

—
—

162,161
7,734

220,656
79,727

Cash paid

$

—

154,427

140,929

Noncash activities:
Net assets distributed in spin-off of GameStop
Note receivable on sale of GameStop shares

$
$

—
—

160,417
74,020

—
—

Net cash flows from financing activities
Cash flows from discontinued operations (Revised — See Note 1)
Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Financing cash flows (including cash at date of spin-off)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (including cash of discontinued
operations of $0, $0 and $204,905, respectively)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net:
Receivables, net
Merchandise inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest
Income taxes (net of refunds)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)
For the 52 weeks ended January 28, 2006 (fiscal 2005),
January 29, 2005 (fiscal 2004) and January 31, 2004
(fiscal 2003).

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business
Barnes & Noble, Inc. (Barnes & Noble), through its
subsidiaries (collectively, the Company), is primarily
engaged in the sale of books. As of January 28, 2006
the Company operated 799 bookstores, 681 primarily
under the Barnes & Noble Booksellers trade name
(hereafter collectively referred to as Barnes & Noble
stores) and 118 primarily under the B. Dalton
Bookseller trade name (hereafter collectively referred to
as B. Dalton stores). Barnes & Noble conducts the
online part of its business through barnesandnoble.com
llc (Barnes & Noble.com), one of the largest sellers of
books on the Internet. The Company publishes books
under its own imprints which, since January 2003, also
include the imprints of Sterling Publishing Co., Inc.
(Sterling Publishing). Additionally, the Company owns
an approximate 74% interest in Calendar Club L.L.C.
(Calendar Club), an operator of seasonal kiosks.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Barnes & Noble and its wholly and
majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in affiliates in
which ownership interests range from 20% to 50%, are
accounted for under the equity method. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. Additionally, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No.
46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51”, as revised (FIN 46R),
requires an entity determined to be a variable interest
entity to be consolidated by the enterprise that absorbs
the majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a
majority of the entity’s expected residual returns or
both. FIN 46R was applied in fiscal 2004 in accounting
for the acquisition of an incremental ownership interest
in a subsidiary of Calendar Club (see Note 8 to the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
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the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all short-term, highly liquid
instruments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Merchandise Inventories
Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost
or market. Cost is determined primarily by the retail
inventory method on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis
for 95% and 96% of the Company’s merchandise
inventories as of January 28, 2006 and January 29,
2005, respectively. The remaining merchandise
inventories are recorded based on the average cost
method.
Market is determined based on the estimated net
realizable value, which is generally the selling price.
Reserves for non-returnable inventory are based on the
Company’s history of liquidating non-returnable
inventory.
The Company also estimates and accrues shortage for
the period between the last physical count of inventory
and the balance sheet date. Shortage rates are estimated
and accrued based on historical rates and can be
affected by changes in merchandise mix and changes in
actual shortage trends.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. For
financial reporting purposes, depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over estimated useful
lives. For tax purposes, different methods are used.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred,
while major improvements and remodeling costs are
capitalized. Leasehold improvements are capitalized
and amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful
lives or the terms of the respective leases. Capitalized
lease acquisition costs are being amortized over the
lease terms of the underlying leases. Costs incurred in
purchasing management information systems are
capitalized and included in property and equipment.
These costs are amortized over their estimated useful
lives from the date the systems become operational.

Use of Estimates
In preparing financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, the Company
is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

Other Long-Lived Assets
The Company’s other long-lived assets include property
and equipment, and amortizable intangibles. At
January 28, 2006, the Company had $806,376 of
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[ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS continued ]

property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation, and $15,685 of amortizable intangible
assets, net of accumulated amortization, accounting
for approximately 26.0% of the Company’s total
assets. The Company reviews its long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets.” The Company evaluates longlived assets for impairment at the individual store
level, which is the lowest level at which individual
cash flows can be identified. When evaluating longlived assets for potential impairment, the Company
will first compare the carrying amount of the assets to
the individual store’s estimated future undiscounted
cash flows. If the estimated future cash flows are less
than the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment
loss calculation is prepared. The impairment loss
calculation compares the carrying amount of the
assets to the individual store’s fair value based on its
estimated discounted future cash flows. If required, an
impairment loss is recorded for that portion of the
asset’s carrying value in excess of fair value.
Impairment losses totaled $12,656, $0 and $0 in fiscal
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Goodwill and Unamortizable Intangible Assets
The costs in excess of net assets of businesses acquired
are carried as goodwill in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.
At January 28, 2006, the Company had $263,731 of
goodwill and $78,149 of unamortizable intangible
assets (i.e. those with an indefinite life), accounting for
approximately 10.8% of the Company’s total assets.
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”, requires that goodwill and other
unamortizable intangible assets no longer be amortized,
but instead be tested for impairment at least annually or
earlier if there are impairment indicators. The Company
performs a two-step process for impairment testing of
goodwill as required by SFAS No. 142. The first step of
this test, used to identify potential impairment,
compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its
carrying amount. The second step (if necessary)
measures the amount of the impairment. The Company
completed its annual impairment test on the goodwill in
November 2005 and deemed that no impairment
charge was necessary. The Company has noted no
subsequent indicators of impairment. The Company
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tests unamortizable intangible assets by comparing the
fair value and the carrying value of such assets.
Changes in market conditions, among other factors,
could have a material impact on these estimates.

Deferred Charges
Costs incurred to obtain long-term financing are
amortized over the terms of the respective debt
agreements using the straight-line method, which
approximates the interest method. Unamortized costs
included in other noncurrent assets as of January 28,
2006 and January 29, 2005 were $1,878 and $2,396,
respectively. Amortization expense included in interest
and amortization of deferred financing fees were $857,
$1,955 and $2,568 during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sales of the Company’s products is
recognized at the time of sale. Sales returns (which are
not significant) are recognized at the time returns are
made.
The Barnes & Noble Membership Program entitles the
customer to receive a 10% discount on all purchases
made during the twelve-month membership period.
The annual membership fee of $25.00 is nonrefundable after the first 30 days of the membership
term. Revenue is being recognized over the twelvemonth membership period based upon historical
spending patterns for Barnes & Noble customers.
Refunds of membership fees due to cancellations within
the first 30 days are minimal.

Advertising Costs
The costs of advertising are expensed as incurred during
the year pursuant to Statement of Position 93-7,
“Reporting on Advertising Costs”. In addition,
consideration received from vendors in conjunction
with the Company’s cooperative advertising program is
netted against the related expenses. Advertising costs
are charged to selling and administrative expenses. In
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
Issue 02-16, “Accounting by a Customer (Including a
Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a
Vendor”, the Company classifies certain co-op
advertising received as a reduction in costs of sales and
occupancy.

Closed Store Expenses
When the Company closes or relocates a store, the
Company charges unrecoverable costs to expense. Such
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costs include the net book value of abandoned fixtures
and leasehold improvements and, when a store is
closed, a provision for future lease obligations, net of
expected sublease recoveries. Costs associated with
store closings of $6,905, $6,531 and $5,698 during
fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are included
in selling and administrative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Net Earnings Per Common Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing
income available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share reflect, in
periods in which they have a dilutive effect, the impact
of common shares issuable upon exercise of the
Company’s outstanding stock options and with respect
to the Company’s deferred compensation plan.

Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes includes federal, state
and local income taxes currently payable and those
deferred because of temporary differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that are
expected to be in effect when the differences reverse.

Stock-Based Compensation
The Company grants options to purchase Barnes &
Noble, Inc. (BKS) common stock and, prior to the May
27, 2004 merger of barnesandnoble.com inc. into a
wholly-owned
subsidiary
of
the
Company,
barnesandnoble.com inc. (BNBN) common stock under
stock-based incentive plans. In addition, prior to the
November 12, 2004 spin-off of GameStop, the
Company granted options to purchase GameStop
(GME) Class A common stock under a stock-based
incentive plan. The Company accounts for all
transactions under which employees receive such
options based on the price of the underlying stock in
accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees”. The following table illustrates the effect on
net income and income per share as if the Company had
applied the fair value-recognition provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for StockBased Compensation - Transition and Disclosure,” to
stock-based incentive plans:

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

Fiscal Year

Net earnings – as reported
Compensation expense,
net of tax
BKS stock options

2005

2004

2003

$ 146,681

143,376

151,775

6,764

19,473

12,513

—
—

4,319
13

4,778
10

$ 139,917

119,571

134,474

GME stock options,
net of minority interest
BNBN stock options
Pro forma net earnings –
pro forma for
SFAS No. 123

Basic earnings per share:
$
As reported
Pro forma for SFAS No. 123 $

2.17
2.07

2.08
1.73

2.30
2.04

Diluted earnings per share:
$
As reported
Pro forma for SFAS No. 123 $

2.03
1.95

1.93
1.62

2.07
1.85

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123
(Revised), “Share-Based Payment,” a revision of SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
SFAS No. 123R requires the fair value measurement of
all stock-based payments to employees, including grants
of employee stock options, and recognition of those
expenses in the statement of operations. SFAS No.
123R is effective for fiscal years that begin after June
15, 2005. As required, the Company will adopt SFAS
No. 123R in the first quarter of fiscal 2006. The
adoption of this standard will not affect the stock-based
compensation associated with the Company’s restricted
stock which is already recorded at fair value on the date
of grant and recognized over the vesting period. The
Company will use the modified prospective method of
adoption which requires companies to record
compensation expense for all previously issued
unvested stock options at the date of the initial
adoption and any stock options issued after January 28,
2006. The Company currently uses the Black-Scholes
valuation model to calculate compensation expense for
stock options for current footnote disclosure purposes
and will continue to use this model in determining
future compensation expense. The Company expects
the stock option compensation expense in fiscal 2006 to
be approximately the same as the fiscal 2005 pro forma
compensation expense noted in the above table.
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Reclassifications
Certain prior-period amounts have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform with the fiscal 2005
presentation.

Reporting Period
The Company’s fiscal year is comprised of 52 or 53 weeks,
ending on the Saturday closest to the last day of January.
The reporting periods ended January 28, 2006, January
29, 2005 and January 31, 2004 contained 52 weeks.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements
There were no accounting standards issued during the fiscal
year ended January 28, 2006 that are reasonably likely to
affect the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Revised Previously Issued Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows
For fiscal 2005, the Company has revised the amounts
shown for net cash flows from (used by) discontinued
operations for fiscal 2004 and 2003 from $37,500 and
$0 to ($167,405) and ($27,124), respectively, and has
separately disclosed the operating, investing and
financing portions of these cash flows. In addition, the
balance of cash and cash equivalents presented on the
statement of cash flows at the beginning and end of
fiscal 2003 have been increased by $232,029 and
$204,905, respectively, to include the cash of the
discontinued operation.
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financial reporting purposes. In that regard, the tax
adjustments associated with the related taxable capital
gain on the Stock Sale, amounting to $14,443, have
been charged directly to retained earnings. Also
included in the charge to retained earnings are $263 of
GameStop costs related to the redemption of their
shares from the Company.
The second step in the disposition was the spin-off by the
Company of its remaining 29,901,662 shares of
GameStop’s Class B common stock (the Spin-Off). The
Spin-Off was completed on November 12, 2004 with the
distribution of 0.424876232 of a share of GameStop
Class B common stock as a tax-free distribution on each
outstanding share of the Company’s common stock to the
Company’s stockholders of record as of the close of
business on November 2, 2004. The Class B shares
retained their super voting power of 10 votes per share
and are separately listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the symbol GME.B. As a result of the Stock Sale
and the Spin-Off, GameStop is no longer a subsidiary of
the Company and, accordingly, the Company will present
all historical results of operations of GameStop as
discontinued operations. The discontinued operations
generated sales of $1,232,141 and $1,578,838 and net
income of $20,001 (net of $19,413 in tax) and $40,571
(net of $26,666 in tax) for fiscal 2004 (to the date of the
Spin-Off) and 2003, respectively.

3. BARNES & NOBLE.COM ACQUISITION
2. GAMESTOP SPIN-OFF
On October 1, 2004, the Company’s independent
directors approved an overall plan for the complete
disposition of all of its Class B common stock in
GameStop Corp. (GameStop), the Company’s video
game operating segment. This disposition was
completed in two steps as described below.
The first step in the disposition was the sale of
6,107,338 shares of GameStop Class B common stock
held by the Company to GameStop (the Stock Sale) for
an aggregate consideration of $111,520, consisting of
$37,500 in cash and a promissory note in the principal
amount of $74,020, bearing interest at a rate of 5.5%
per annum. Scheduled payments on the note of $37,500
and $12,173 were received in January 2005 and
October 2005, respectively, and the remaining balance
is due in two equal annual installments of $12,173 on
October 1, 2006 and 2007. The Stock Sale was
completed on October 1, 2004. Because of the capital
nature of the disposition, the proceeds from the Stock
Sale were recorded as a reduction in the basis of the
investment in GameStop, resulting in no gain for

On September 15, 2003, the Company completed its
acquisition of all of Bertelsmann AG’s (Bertelsmann)
interest in barnesandnoble.com inc. (bn.com) and
barnesandnoble.com llc (Barnes & Noble.com). The
purchase price paid by the Company was $165,406
(including acquisition related costs) in a combination of
cash and a note, equivalent to $2.80 per share in
bn.com or membership unit in Barnes & Noble.com.
The note issued to Bertelsmann in the amount of
$82,000 was paid in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.
As a result of the acquisition, the Company increased its
economic interest in Barnes & Noble.com to
approximately 75%.
On May 27, 2004, the Company completed a merger
(the Merger) of bn.com with a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. The purchase price paid by the
Company was $158,776 (including acquisition related
costs). Under the terms of the Merger, the holders of
bn.com’s outstanding common stock, other than the
Company and its subsidiaries, received $3.05 in cash
for each share that they owned. The Merger was
approved by the shareholders of bn.com at a special
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meeting held on May 27, 2004. As a result of the
Merger, bn.com became a privately held company,
wholly owned by the Company.
The acquisitions were accounted for by the purchase
method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of
operations since September 15, 2003 are included in the
consolidated financial statements. Based upon the
assessment of the fair values, the allocation of the
purchase price to the proportionate amount of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the above noted
transactions was as follows:

Current assets
Hardware and software
Other assets
Customer list and relationships
Trade name
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill
Total assets acquired
Liabilities assumed
Total purchase price

$ 58,835
24,625
16,028
7,700
48,400
54,220
183,164
392,972
68,790
$ 324,182

Hardware and software have been assigned an
estimated useful life of four years. The customer list and
relationships intangible asset has been assigned an
estimated useful life of four years to be amortized on an
accelerated basis based on estimated usage where a
substantial portion of the asset will be amortized in the
first year. The goodwill and the trade name (which is
considered to have an indefinite life and will not be
amortized) will be tested at least annually for
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.
Goodwill arising from the Bertelsmann acquisition that
is deductible for income tax purposes exceeded the
related amount for financial reporting purposes by
approximately $96,576. In accordance with SFAS No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, the Company
will recognize the tax benefits of amortizing such excess
as a reduction of goodwill as it is realized on the
Company’s income tax return (see Note 12 to the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements).

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

The following table summarizes pro forma results as if
the Company had acquired Barnes & Noble.com
(resulting in a 100% economic interest) and recorded
the above noted allocations of purchase price on the
first day of fiscal 2003:
Fiscal Year

2003

Sales
Net income
Earnings from continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

$ 4,649,000
$ 139,387
$
$

1.50
1.41

Prior to the quarter ended July 31, 2004, the Company
reported the results of Barnes & Noble.com on a one
month lag basis. Subsequent to the Merger, the results
of Barnes & Noble.com have been included based on a
reporting period which is consistent with that of the
Company. As a result of this change, retained earnings
has been charged directly for the $1,532 loss of Barnes
& Noble.com for the month of January 2004, and all
other reported results are presented as though the
reporting period of Barnes & Noble.com was changed
at the beginning of fiscal 2004.

4. RECEIVABLES, NET
Receivables represent customer, credit/debit card,
advertising, landlord and other receivables due within
one year as follows:
January 28,

January 29,

2006

2005

33,411
18,885

31,446
12,829

12,173
9,875

12,173
9,473

14,936
9,837

18,159
7,421

99,117

91,501

Credit/debit card receivables(a)
Trade accounts
Current portion of note
receivable from GameStop
Advertising
Receivables from landlords for
leasehold improvements
Other receivables

$

Total receivables, net

$

(a) Credit/debit card receivables consist of receivables from
credit/debit card companies. The Company assumes no
customer credit risk for these receivables.
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5. DEBT
On June 17, 2005, the Company, together with certain of its
subsidiaries, entered into a Credit Agreement (the New
Facility) with a syndicate led by Bank of America, N.A. and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. The New Facility replaces the
Amended and Restated Credit and Term Loan Agreement,
dated as of August 10, 2004 (the Prior Facility), which
consisted of a revolving credit facility and a term loan. The
revolving credit facility portion was due to expire in May
2006 and the term loan had a maturity date of August 10,
2009. The Prior Facility was terminated on June 17, 2005, at
which time the prior outstanding term loan of $245,000 was
repaid. Letters of credit issued under the Prior Facility, which
totaled approximately $30,000 as of June 17, 2005, were
transferred to become letters of credit under the New Facility.
The New Facility provides for a maximum aggregate
borrowing amount of $850,000 (which under certain
circumstances may be increased to $1,000,000 at the option
of the Company) and terminates on June 16, 2010. The
maximum aggregate borrowing amount may be reduced
from time to time according to the terms of the New Facility.
Borrowings made pursuant to the New Facility may be
committed loans or swing line loans, the combined sum
(including any outstanding letters of credit) of which may not
exceed the maximum borrowing amount.
Borrowings made pursuant to the New Facility as
committed loans will bear interest, payable quarterly or, if
earlier, at the end of any interest period, at either (a) the
base rate, described in the New Facility as the higher of
Bank of America N.A.’s prime rate (7.25% as of January
28, 2006) or the federal funds rate (4.38% as of January
28, 2006) plus 0.50%, or (b) the Eurodollar rate (a
publicly published rate which amounted to 4.57% as of
January 28, 2006) plus a percentage spread (ranging from
0.750% to 1.375%) based on the Company’s consolidated
fixed charge coverage ratio. Swing line loans bear interest
at the base rate. Under the New Facility, the Company
agrees to pay a commitment facility fee, payable quarterly,
at rates that range from 0.150% to 0.300% depending on
the Company’s consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio.
The payments under the New Facility are guaranteed by
material subsidiaries of the Company.
The New Facility contains customary affirmative and
negative covenants for credit facilities of this type,
including limitations on the Company and its subsidiaries
with respect to indebtedness, liens, investments,
distributions, mergers and acquisitions, disposition of
assets, sale-leaseback transactions, and transactions with
affiliates. The New Facility permits the Company to use
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proceeds of the credit loans and letters of credit for
working capital and capital expenditures and for all other
lawful corporate purposes, including payment of
dividends, acquisitions of assets, capital stock of other
companies and share repurchases, in each case to the
extent permitted in the New Facility. The New Facility also
contains financial covenants that require the Company to
maintain a minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage
ratio of 1.75 and a maximum consolidated funded debt to
earnings ratio of 2.00.
The New Facility provides for customary events of default
with corresponding grace periods, including failure to pay
any principal or interest when due, failure to comply with
covenants, any material representation or warranty made
by the Company proving to be false in any material
respect, certain bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership
events affecting the Company or its subsidiaries, defaults
relating to certain other indebtedness, imposition of
certain judgments and a change in control of the
Company (as defined in the New Facility).
On June 28, 2004, the Company completed the
redemption of its $300,000 outstanding 5.25%
convertible subordinated notes due 2009. Holders of
the notes converted a total of $17,746 principal amount
of the notes into 545,821 shares of common stock of
the Company, plus cash in lieu of fractional shares, at a
price of $32.512 per share. The Company redeemed the
balance of $282,254 principal amount of the notes at
an aggregate redemption price, together with accrued
interest and redemption premium, of $294,961. The
write-off of the unamortized portion of the deferred
financing fees from the issuance of the notes and the
redemption premium resulted in a charge of $14,582.
Selected information related to the Company’s term
loan, convertible subordinated notes and the New and
Prior Facilities:
Fiscal Year

Revolving credit facility
Term loan
Convertible subordinated note
Balance at end of year
Average balance outstanding
during the year
Maximum borrowings outstanding
during the year
Weighted average interest rate
during the year
Interest rate at end of year

2005

2004

2003

—
—
—
—

—
245,000
—
245,000

—
—
300,000
300,000

$121,915

276,043

342,469

$245,000

392,700

474,150

6.91%
—

5.25%
3.78%

6.33%
5.25%

$

$
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Fees expensed with respect to the unused portion of the New and Prior Facilities were $1,320, $1,014 and $1,170,
during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The amounts outstanding under the New and Prior Facilities, if any, have been classified as long-term debt based on
the Company’s ability to continually maintain principal amounts outstanding.
The Company has no agreements to maintain compensating balances.

6. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
approximate fair value due to the short-term maturities of these assets. The aggregate fair value of the Credit Facility
approximates its carrying amount because of its recent and frequent repricing based upon market conditions.

7. NET EARNINGS PER SHARE
Following is a reconciliation of earnings from continuing operations and weighted average common shares outstanding
for purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:
Fiscal Year

Numerator:
Earnings from continuing operations
Interest expense on 5.25% convertible subordinated notes, net of tax

Denominator:
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding
Weighted average assumed conversion of 5.25% convertible
subordinated notes
Dilutive effect of stock awards
Diluted outstanding shares
Earnings from continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

2005

2004

2003

$146,681
—

123,375
3,835

111,204
10,151

$146,681

127,210

121,355

67,560

69,018

65,989

—
4,590

3,752
2,926

9,227
1,889

72,150

75,696

77,105

$2.17
$2.03

1.79
1.68

1.69
1.57

8. OTHER ACQUISITIONS
Calendar Club has a minority interest in a joint venture investment, CCUK, which distributes and sells calendars and
related products in the United Kingdom. CCUK was previously accounted for under the equity method. As a result of
the acquisition of an incremental ownership interest in CCUK in fiscal 2004, Calendar Club determined that CCUK
should be consolidated under the provisions of FIN 46R and, accordingly, the results of operations for the period
subsequent to the acquisition are included in the consolidated financial statements. The operating results of CCUK are
not material to the Company.
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9. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT AND DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS
As of December 31, 1999, substantially all employees of the Company were covered under a noncontributory defined benefit
pension plan (the Pension Plan). As of January 1, 2000, the Pension Plan was amended so that employees no longer earn
benefits for subsequent service. Effective December 31, 2004, the Barnes & Noble.com Employees’ Retirement Plan (the
B&N.com Retirement Plan) was merged with the Pension Plan. Substantially all employees of Barnes & Noble.com were
covered under the B&N.com Retirement Plan. As of July 1, 2000, the B&N.com Retirement Plan was amended so that
employees no longer earn benefits for subsequent service. The Pension Plan will continue to hold assets and pay benefits.
The Company maintains a defined contribution plan (the Savings Plan) for the benefit of substantially all employees.
In addition, the Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits (the Postretirement Plan) to retired
employees, limited to those receiving benefits or retired as of April 1, 1993.
A summary of the components of net periodic cost for the Pension Plan and the Postretirement Plan follows:
Pension Plan
Fiscal Year

Postretirement Plan

2005

2004

2003

2005

2004

2003

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net amortization and deferral

$

—
2,284
(2,769)
1,559

—
2,245
(2,679)
1,596

—
2,083
(2,259)
1,184

—
176
—
3

—
285
—
84

—
282
—
51

Total expense

$

1,074

1,162

1,008

179

369

333

Total Company contributions charged to employee benefit expenses for the Savings Plan were $9,174, $8,145 and
$7,140 during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Actuarial assumptions used for disclosure of the Pension Plan and the Postretirement Plan are as follows:
Pension Plan
Fiscal Year

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets

2005

6.0%
8.8%

2004

6.0%
8.8%

Postretirement Plan
2003

6.3%
8.8%

2005

6.0%
—

2004

6.0%
—

2003

6.3%
—

Weighted-average actuarial assumptions used in determining the net periodic costs of the Pension Plan and the
Postretirement Plan are as follows:
Pension Plan
Fiscal Year

Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets

2005

6.0%
8.8%

2004

6.3%
8.8%

Postretirement Plan
2003

6.5%
8.8%

2005

6.0%
—

2004

6.3%
—

2003

6.5%
—
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The following table provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of the Pension Plan
and the Postretirement Plan:
Pension Plan
Fiscal Year

Postretirement Plan

2005

2004

2005

2004

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Interest cost
Actuarial (gain) loss
Medicare prescription subsidy
Benefits paid

$ 38,712
2,284
(255)
—
(1,478)

34,231
2,245
3,652
—
(1,416)

5,030
176
(1,673)
—
(298)

4,678
285
1,179
(537)
(575)

Benefit obligation at end of year

$ 39,263

38,712

3,235

5,030

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid

$ 32,027
3,030
—
(1,478)

30,872
2,571
—
(1,416)

—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$ 33,579

32,027

—

—

Funded status
Unrecognized net actuarial loss

$ (5,685)
14,951

(6,685)
17,025

(3,235)
317

(5,030)
1,993

Net amount recognized

$

9,266

10,340

(2,918)

(3,037)

Amounts recognized in the statement
of financial position consist of:
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost
Accrued benefit liability
Accumulated other comprehensive income

$

—
(5,685)
14,951

—
(6,685)
17,025

(2,918)
—
—

(3,037)
—
—

Net amount recognized

$

9,266

10,340

(2,918)

(3,037)

The health-care cost trend rate used to measure the expected cost of the Postretirement Plan benefits is assumed to be
9% in 2006 declining at 1% decrements each year through 2010 to 5% in 2010 and each year thereafter. The healthcare cost trend assumption has an effect on the amounts reported. For example, a 1% increase or decrease in the healthcare cost trend rate would change the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $267 and
($228), respectively, as of January 28, 2006, and would change the net periodic cost by approximately $15 and ($13),
respectively, during fiscal 2005.
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The Company’s Pension Plan allocation at January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 are as follows:
Percentage of Plan Assets
Fiscal Year

2005

2004

Asset Category
Large capitalization equities
Mid capitalization equities
Small capitalization equities
International equities
Fixed income core bonds
Global bonds
Cash

24.7%
15.0
15.0
5.3
34.6
4.9
0.5

24.8%
15.0
14.9
5.0
35.0
5.0
0.3

100.0%

100.0%

The Company’s investment strategy is to obtain the highest possible return commensurate with the level of assumed
risk. Investments are well diversified within each of the major asset categories.
Annualized returns for periods ending January 28, 2006 have been as follows: 8.1% for one year and 14.6% for three years.
The Company expects that there will be no minimum regulatory funding requirements that will need to be made during
the fiscal year ending February 3, 2007. No decision has been made at this time on Company contributions.
Expected benefit payments are as follows over future years:
Postretirement Plan

Fiscal Year

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011-2015

Pension

Gross Before
Medicare
Part D

Expected
Medicare Part

Net Including
Medicare Part

Plan

Subsidies

D Subsidies

D Subsidies

$ 901
997
1,142
1,229
1,325
8,932

$ 295
318
334
338
343
1,698

$ 56
58
61
62
62
299

$ 239
260
273
276
281
1,399
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10. INCOME TAXES
The Company files a consolidated federal return with
all 80% or more owned subsidiaries. Federal and state
income tax provisions (benefits) for fiscal 2005, 2004
and 2003 are as follows:
Fiscal Year

Current:
Federal
State

2005

59,725
12,991

40,042
7,286

100,117

72,716

47,328

Deferred:
Federal
State

(6,638)
8,563

20,647
638

26,580
4,871

Total deferred

1,925

21,285

31,451

$ 102,042

94,001

78,779

Total

A reconciliation between the effective income tax rate
and the federal statutory income tax rate is as follows:
Fiscal Year

Federal statutory income
tax rate
State income taxes,
net of federal income
tax benefit
Prior year taxes
Other, net
Effective income tax rate

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise
to significant components of the Company’s deferred
tax assets and liabilities as of January 28, 2006 and
January 29, 2005 are as follows:
January 28,
2006

2003

90,738
9,379

Total current

$

2004

2005

2004

2003

35.00 %

35.00 %

35.00 %

4.54
—
1.21

4.58
1.86
1.56

4.43
0.45
1.47

40.75 %

43.00 %

41.35 %

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment in Barnes & Noble.com $ (102,691)
Depreciation
(40,067)
Operating expenses
(15,357)
Goodwill and intangible asset
(11,793)
amortization
Other
(3,483)
Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax liabilities

(13,319)
(6,308)
(199,955)

48,188
47,836
11,723
14,684
10,914
8,022
7,108

55,413
40,848
25,820
21,962
16,465
8,283
7,749

148,475

176,540

$

(24,916)

(23,415)

$

34,429
114,046
(15,356)
(158,035)

53,309
123,231
(6,212)
(193,743)

$

(24,916)

(23,415)

Total deferred tax assets

Balance Sheet caption reported in:
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets
Deferred taxes (assets)
Accrued liabilities
Deferred taxes (liabilities)

(93,629)
(80,762)
(5,937)

(173,391)

Deferred tax assets:
Loss carryover
Lease transactions
Inventory
Estimated accruals
Investments in equity securities
Insurance liability
Pension

Net deferred tax liabilities

January 29,
2005

At January 28, 2006, bn.com, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, had federal and state net
operating loss (NOL) carryforwards of approximately
$119,000 that expire beginning in 2018 through 2022
if not utilized. Due to the change in ownership of
bn.com resulting from the Merger described in Note 3
above, the utilization of these NOL carryforwards in
the Company’s consolidated tax returns is limited to
approximately $6,700 on an annual basis.

---

The Company has additional state NOL carryforwards
of approximately $41,000 that expire beginning in
2006 through 2012.
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11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (LOSS), NET OF TAX
Comprehensive earnings are net earnings, plus certain other items that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity,
as follows:
Fiscal Year

Net earnings
Other comprehensive earnings (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
securities (net of deferred tax expense (benefit)
of $0, ($58) and $88, respectively)
Less: reclassification adjustment (net of deferred
income tax expense of $0, $20 and $0, respectively)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
securities, net of reclassification adjustment
Unrealized loss on derivative instrument (net of
deferred tax of $0, $0 and $2, respectively)
Changes in minimum pension liability (net of
deferred tax expense (benefit) of $845, ($879)
and $1,416, respectively)
Total comprehensive earnings

2005

2004

2003

$ 146,681

143,376

151,775

(457)

(19)

296

—

(142)

128

—

48

—

—

(94)

128

—

—

3

1,229

(1,165)

2,058

$ 147,453

142,098

154,260

12. CHANGES IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
The following intangible assets were acquired by the Company primarily in connection with the purchase of Sterling
Publishing in fiscal 2002, the purchase of Bertelsmann’s interest in Barnes & Noble.com in fiscal 2003 and the purchase
of the public interest in Barnes & Noble.com in fiscal 2004:
As of January 28, 2006

Amortizable intangible assets
Unamortizable intangible assets

Gross Carrying Amount

Accumulated Amortization

Total

$ 29,363
78,149

(13,678)
-

$ 15,685
78,149

$ 107,512

(13,678)

$ 93,834

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of author contracts and customer list and relationships, which are being
amortized over periods of 10 years and four years (on an accelerated basis), respectively.

2005 Annual Report

[ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS continued ]

repurchased 1,602,000 shares at a cost of $68,184. All
repurchased shares are held in treasury.

Aggregate Amortization Expense:

For the 52 weeks ended January 28, 2006

Barnes & Noble, Inc.

$ 3,718

Estimated Amortization Expense:

(12 months ending on or about January 31)
2007.........................................................................................$2,684
2008.........................................................................................$2,531
2009.........................................................................................$2,395
2010.........................................................................................$2,382
2011.........................................................................................$2,023

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the
52 weeks ended January 28, 2006 are as follows:

Balance as of January 29, 2005
Foreign currency translation
Benefit of excess tax amortization (See Note 4)

$ 268,379
(220)
(4,428 )

Balance as of January 28, 2006

$ 263,731

13. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
During the 52 weeks ended January 29, 2000 (fiscal
1999), the Board of Directors authorized a common
stock repurchase program for the purchase of up to
$250,000 of the Company’s common shares. The
Company completed this $250,000 repurchase
program during the first quarter of fiscal 2005. On
March 24, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized an additional share repurchase program of
up to $200,000 of the Company’s common shares. The
Company completed this $200,000 repurchase
program during the third quarter of fiscal 2005. On
September 15, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors
authorized a new share repurchase program of up to
$200,000 of the Company’s common shares. Share
repurchases under this program may be made through
open market and privately negotiated transactions from
time to time and in such amounts as management deems
appropriate. As of January 28, 2006, the Company
has repurchased 7,682,700 shares at a cost of
approximately $282,746 under these programs in fiscal
2005, bringing the combined total repurchases under
these programs to 16,690,400 shares at a cost of
approximately $478,769. The maximum dollar value
of common shares that may yet be purchased under the
current program is approximately $171,000 as of
January 28, 2006. During the first quarter of fiscal
2006 (through March 31, 2006), the Company

Each share of the Company’s Common Stock also
entitles the holder to the right (the Right) to purchase
one four-hundredth of a share of the Company’s Series
H Preferred Stock for $225. The Right is only
exercisable if a person or group acquires 15% or more
of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock or
announces a tender offer or exchange offer, the
consummation of which would result in such person or
group owning 15% or more of the Company’s
outstanding Common Stock.

14. STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS
The Company grants stock awards in the form of
restricted stock or options to purchase Barnes & Noble,
Inc. (BKS) common stock, and prior to the Merger
granted options to purchase barnesandnoble.com inc.
(BNBN) common stock under stock-based incentive
plans. Through January 28, 2006, the Company has
accounted for stock-based awards in accordance with
the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”
and related interpretations. In accordance with SFAS
No. 123, the Company discloses the pro forma impact
of recording compensation expense utilizing the BlackScholes model for estimating the fair value of options
issued. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was
developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully
transferable. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptions
including the expected stock price volatility. Because the
stock options have characteristics significantly different
from those of traded options, and because changes in
the subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the
Black-Scholes model does not necessarily provide a
reliable measure of the fair value of the companies’
stock options. The pro forma effect on earnings from
continuing operations and earnings per share, had the
Company applied the fair-value-recognition provisions
of SFAS No. 123, is shown in Note 1 to the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

BKS Stock-Based Incentive Plans
The Company currently has three incentive plans under
which stock options and restricted stock have been
granted to officers, directors and key employees of the
Company, the 1991 Employee Incentive Plan (the 1991
Plan), the 1996 Incentive Plan (the 1996 Plan) and the
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2004 Incentive Plan (the 2004 Plan). Additionally,
options and restricted stock may continue to be granted
in the future under the 1996 Plan and the 2004 Plan.
The options to purchase common shares are issued with
an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the
common stock on the date of the grant, and generally
begin vesting after one year in 33-1/3% or 25%
increments per year, expire 10 years from issuance and
are conditioned upon continued employment during the
vesting period.
The 2004 Plan, the 1996 Plan and the 1991 Plan allow
the Company to grant options to purchase up to
8,376,562, 17,667,737 and 4,754,464 shares of
common stock, respectively, (7,300,000, 14,500,000
and 4,732,704, respectively, before adjustments to
reflect the impact of the GameStop spin-off on shares
available for grant, as noted below). Restricted stock
awards are counted against this limit as two shares for
every one share granted.
Leonard Riggio, the Company’s chairman, exercised
1,318,750 stock options in September 2003, by
tendering in payment of the exercise price of the stock
options 606,277 shares that he held in the Company’s
stock. Mr. Riggio elected to defer receipt of the balance
of the shares (712,473) due from the exercise pursuant
to the Company’s Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan. In accordance therewith, the Company
established a rabbi trust for the benefit of Mr. Riggio
which holds 712,473 shares of the Company’s common
stock. The shares held by the rabbi trust are treated as
treasury stock. Due to the deferred compensation
arrangement these shares are included in the
denominator of the EPS calculation in accordance with
SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per share” when the impact is
not antidilutive.
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The weighted-average fair value of the options granted
during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 were estimated at
$12.69, $11.68 and $8.02, respectively, using the BlackScholes option-pricing model with the following
assumptions:
Fiscal Year

Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life

2005

2004

2003

30%
4.19%
6 years

31%
3.73%
6 years

40%
2.71%
6 years

A summary of the status of the Company’s BKS stock
options is presented below:
Shares
(000s)

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Balance, February 1, 2003
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

12,568
1,967
(5,063 )
(573 )

$ 18.22
18.78
13.04
20.98

Balance, January 31, 2004
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

8,899
3,049
(1,256 )
(414 )

21.12
30.97
19.42
23.48

Balance, November 12, 2004
Adjustment for
GameStop spin-off (a)
Adjusted balance,
November 12, 2004

10,278

24.16

4,266

(7.11)

14,544

17.05

Exercised
Forfeited

(619 )
(65 )

14.75
16.51

Balance, January 29, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

13,860
400
(4,068 )
(423 )

17.16
33.37
15.27
16.94

Balance, January 28, 2006

9,769

$ 18.61

(a) In conjunction with the spin-off of GameStop, and the
consequent reduction in the market price of the Company’s
shares, the Company reduced the exercise price of its
outstanding options and increased the number of such
options, so that option holders would have the same
intrinsic value before and after the spin-off.

[ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS continued ]
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The following table summarizes information as of January 28, 2006 concerning outstanding and exercisable options:
Options Outstanding

Range of Exercise Prices

$11.27 - $15.06
$16.10 - $20.84
$21.67 - $24.55
$31.96 - $37.85
$11.27 - $37.85

Options Exercisable

Number
Outstanding
(000s)

Weighted-Average
Remaining
Contractual Life

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

Number
Exercisable
(000s)

2,385
3,316
3,668
400
9,769

6.33
5.03
7.94
9.16
6.61

$ 12.46
$ 17.48
$ 22.02
$ 33.37
$ 18.61

1,117
2,950
2,333
—
6,400

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

$
$
$
$
$

12.58
17.30
21.96
—
18.17

The Company granted 443,400 and 50,000 restricted shares with grant date fair values of $15,020 and $1,540 in fiscal
2005 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of these restricted shares is being recorded as compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the related vesting periods, which range from one to four years.

BNBN Stock Option Plans
Bn.com had one incentive plan (the 1999 Plan) under
which BNBN stock options were granted to key
officers, employees, consultants, advisors, and
managers of bn.com and its subsidiaries and affiliates.
The 1999 Plan was administered by the Compensation
Committee of bn.com’s Board of Directors. The 1999
Plan allowed bn.com to grant options to purchase
25,500,000 shares of bn.com’s Class A Common Stock.
Generally, options were granted at fair market value,
began vesting one year after grant in 25% increments,
were to expire 10 years from issuance and were
conditioned upon continual employment during the
vesting period.
Subsequent to the May 27, 2004 Merger, the holders of
bn.com’s outstanding common stock, other than that
owned by the Company and its subsidiaries, received
$3.05 in cash for each share that they owned and the
1999 Plan was terminated.

A summary of the status of bn.com’s BNBN stock
options as of bn.com’s fiscal year-ends is presented
below:
Shares
(000s)

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Balance, December 31, 2002
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

18,172
2,421
(4,478)
(1,173)

3.11
1.48
1.29
4.46

Balance, December 31, 2003
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

14,942
44
(8,495)
(6,491)

3.29
2.93
1.26
5.88

Balance, May 27, 2004

—
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The weighted-average fair value of the options granted
during the period ended May 27, 2004 and the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2003 were estimated at $2.00
and $1.03 respectively, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following assumptions:
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Future minimum annual rentals, excluding percentage
rentals, required under leases that had initial,
noncancelable lease terms greater than one year, as of
January 28, 2006 are:
Fiscal Year

Period Ended
May 27,
2004

Volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31,
2003

102%
3.65%
4 years

102%
3.65%
4 years

2006......................................................................................$344,884
2007........................................................................................331,678
2008........................................................................................315,745
2009........................................................................................296,695
2010........................................................................................266,789
After 2010................................................................................845,469
$2,401,260

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company leases retail stores, warehouse facilities,
office space and equipment. Substantially all of the
retail stores are leased under noncancelable agreements
which expire at various dates through 2036 with
various renewal options for additional periods. The
agreements, which have been classified as operating
leases, generally provide for both minimum and
percentage rentals and require the Company to pay
insurance, taxes and other maintenance costs.
Percentage rentals are based on sales performance in
excess of specified minimums at various stores.
Rental expense under operating leases are as follows:
Fiscal Year

2005

2004

2003

Minimum rentals
$319,070
Percentage rentals
7,276

309,082
6,031

297,939
5,183

$326,346

315,113

303,122

The Company provides for minimum rent expense over
the lease terms (including the build-out period) on a
straight-line basis. The excess of such rent expense over
actual lease payments (net of tenant allowances) is
reflected primarily in other long-term liabilities in the
accompanying balance sheets.
The Company leases one of its distribution facilities
located in South Brunswick, New Jersey from the
New Jersey Economic Development Authority
(NJEDA) under the terms of an operating lease
expiring in June 2011. Under the terms of this lease,
the Company provides a residual value guarantee to
the NJEDA, in an amount not to exceed $5,000,
relating to the fair market value of this distribution
facility calculated at the conclusion of the lease term.
The Company believes that the possibility that any
such payment would be required under this
guarantee is remote.
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16. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
There have been no material developments with respect
to previously reported legal proceedings, except as
follows:
On March 14, 2003, a Company employee filed a class
action lawsuit in the Superior Court of California,
Orange County against the Company. The complaint
alleges that the Company improperly classified the
assistant store managers, department managers and
receiving managers working in its California stores as
salaried exempt employees. The complaint alleges that
these employees spent more than 50% of their time
performing non-exempt work and should have been
classified as non-exempt employees. The complaint
alleges violations of the California Labor Code and
California Business and Professions Code and sought
relief, including overtime compensation, prejudgment
interest, penalties, attorneys’ fees and costs. On
November 18, 2004, an amended complaint was filed
alleging that the Company improperly classified the
music managers and café managers working in its
California stores as salaried exempt employees. The
parties reached agreement on a settlement that provides
for a maximum payment of $10,000 to the class,
including attorneys’ fees, costs and class representative
enhancements, an amount which is not different from
that accrued by the Company. On March 21, 2006, the
court entered final judgment on the settlement, and the
case was dismissed with prejudice. The Company
anticipates that the settlement funds will be disbursed
in June 2006.
The class action lawsuit In Re Initial Public Offering
Securities Litigation filed in the U.S. District Court,
Southern District of New York in April 2002 (the
Action) named over one thousand individuals and 300
corporations, including Fatbrain.com, LLC (Fatbrain)
(a subsidiary of bn.com) and its former officers and
directors. The amended complaints in the Action all
allege that the initial public offering registration
statements filed by the defendant issuers with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, including the one
filed by Fatbrain, were false and misleading because
they failed to disclose that the defendant underwriters
were receiving excess compensation in the form of
profit sharing with certain of its customers and that
some of those customers agreed to buy additional
shares of the defendant issuers’ common stock in the
after market at increasing prices. The amended
complaints also allege that the foregoing constitute
violations of: (i) Section 11 of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the 1933 Act) by the defendant
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issuers, the directors and officers signing the related
registration statements, and the related underwriters;
(ii) Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the 1934 Act) by the same
parties; and (iii) the control person provisions of the
1933 and 1934 Acts by certain directors and officers of
the defendant issuers. A motion to dismiss by the
defendant issuers, including Fatbrain, was denied.
After extensive negotiations among representatives of
plaintiffs and defendants, a memorandum of
understanding (MOU), outlining a proposed settlement
resolving the claims in the Action between plaintiffs and
the defendants issuers, has been entered into.
Subsequently a settlement agreement was executed
between the defendants and plaintiffs in the action, the
terms of which are consistent with the MOU. The
Settlement Agreement was submitted to the Court for
approval and on February 15, 2005, the judge granted
preliminary approval of the settlement, subject to
certain modifications. The proposed settlement is
expected to be funded by the defendants’ insurance
companies. A court conference was held on March 29,
2006. The purposes of the conference were to: (1) set
an agenda for the settlement fairness hearing on April
24; (2) determine the timing and scope of any
submissions planned by the parties before and/or after
the fairness hearing; and (3) give the parties an
opportunity to raise any other issues related to the
fairness hearing.
Barnes & Noble.com receives communications from
time to time from various states regarding the
applicability of state sales tax to sales made by Barnes
& Noble.com to customers in their respective states.
While management believes that the accompanying
financial statements reflect the best current estimate of
any potential liability in this area, there can be no
assurance that the outcome of any discussions between
Barnes & Noble.com and any state taxing authority
will not result in the payment by Barnes & Noble.com
of state taxes for prior periods, or that the amount of
any such payments will not be materially in excess of
any liability currently recorded.
In addition to the above actions, various claims and
lawsuits arising in the normal course of business are
pending against the Company. The subject matter of
these other proceedings primarily includes commercial
disputes, personal injury claims and employment
issues. The results of these other proceedings are not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or results
of operations.
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17. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS
The Company believes that the transactions and
agreements discussed below (including renewals of any
existing agreements) between the Company and its
affiliates are at least as favorable to the Company as
could be obtained from unaffiliated parties. The Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee are designated to
approve in advance any new proposed transaction or
agreement with affiliates and will utilize procedures in
evaluating the terms and provisions of such proposed
transaction or agreement as are appropriate in light of
the fiduciary duties of directors under Delaware law.
The Company leases space for its executive offices in
properties in which Leonard Riggio has a minority
interest. The space was rented at an aggregate annual
rent including real estate taxes of approximately
$4,532, $4,475 and $4,275 in fiscal years 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Rent per square foot is
approximately $29.00, which is currently below
market.
The Company leases a 75,000-square-foot office/
warehouse from a partnership in which Leonard Riggio
has a 50% interest, pursuant to a lease expiring in
2023. Pursuant to such lease, the Company paid (net of
subtenant income) $312, $304 and $638 in fiscal years
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The Company leases retail space in a building in which
Barnes & Noble College Bookstores, Inc. (B&N
College), a company owned by Leonard Riggio,
subleases space from the Company. Occupancy costs
allocated by the Company to B&N College for this
space totaled $872, $810 and $823 for fiscal years
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The amount paid by
B&N College to the Company approximates the cost
per square foot paid by the Company to its unaffiliated
third-party landlord.
Barnes & Noble.com purchases new and used
textbooks directly from MBS Textbook Exchange, Inc.
(MBS), a corporation majority-owned by Leonard
Riggio. Total purchases were $16,842, $18,148 and
$13,829 for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. In addition, Barnes & Noble.com
maintains a link on its Web site which is hosted by MBS
and through which Barnes & Noble.com customers are
able to sell used books directly to MBS. Barnes &
Noble.com is paid a commission based on the price paid
by MBS to the consumer. Total commissions were $46,
$62, and $75 for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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Barnes & Noble.com licenses the “Barnes & Noble”
name under a royalty-free license agreement, dated
October 31, 1998, as amended, between Barnes &
Noble.com and B&N College (the License Agreement).
Pursuant to the License Agreement, Barnes &
Noble.com has been granted an exclusive license to use
the “Barnes & Noble” name and trademark in
perpetuity for the purpose of selling books over the
Internet (excluding sales of college textbooks). Under a
separate agreement dated as of January 2001, between
Barnes & Noble.com and Textbooks.com, Inc.
(Textbooks.com), a corporation owned by Leonard
Riggio, Barnes & Noble.com was granted the right
to sell college textbooks over the Internet using
the “Barnes & Noble” name. Pursuant to this
agreement, Barnes & Noble.com pays Textbooks.com a royalty on revenues (net of product
returns, applicable sales tax and excluding shipping
and handling) realized by Barnes & Noble.com from
the sale of books designated as textbooks. The term
of the agreement is for five years and renews
annually for additional one-year periods unless
terminated 12 months prior to the end of any given
term.Royalty expense was $4,870, $4,551 and
$3,984 for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, under the terms of this agreement.
The Company paid B&N College certain operating
costs B&N College incurred on the Company’s behalf.
These charges are included in the accompanying
consolidated
statements
of
operations
and
approximated $198, $219 and $237 for fiscal 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. B&N College purchased
inventory, at cost plus an incremental fee, of $49,997,
$46,468 and $43,403 from the Company during fiscal
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company
charged B&N College $2,527, $2,439 and $2,198 for
fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for
capital expenditures, business insurance and other
operating costs incurred on its behalf.
The Company uses a jet aircraft owned by B&N
College and pays for the costs and expenses of
operating the aircraft based upon the Company’s usage.
Such costs which include fuel, insurance and other costs
approximated $2,590, $2,361 and $2,373 during fiscal
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and are included in
the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations.
GameStop, a company in which Leonard Riggio is a
member of the Board of Directors and a minority
shareholder, operates departments within some of the
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Company’s bookstores. GameStop pays a license fee to
the Company in an amount equal to 7% of the gross
sales of such departments. The Company charged
GameStop a license fee of $857, $859 and $974 during
fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003.
Until June 2005, GameStop participated in the
Company’s worker’s compensation, property and
general liability insurance programs. The costs incurred
by the Company under these programs were allocated
to GameStop based upon GameStop’s total payroll
expense, property and equipment, and insurance claim
history. The Company charged GameStop for these
services $1,726, $2,548 and $2,363 during fiscal 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Although GameStop
secured its own insurance coverage, costs will likely
continue to be incurred by the Company on insurance
claims which were incurred under its programs prior to
June 2005 and any such costs applicable to insurance
claims against GameStop will be allocated to
GameStop.
In fiscal 2003, GameStop purchased an airplane from
B&N College. The purchase price was $9,500 and was
negotiated through an independent third-party
following an independent appraisal.
The Company is provided with national freight
distribution, including trucking services by the Argix
Direct Inc. (Argix) (formerly the LTA Group, Inc.), a
company in which a brother of Leonard and Stephen
Riggio owns a 20% interest. The Company paid Argix
$20,120, $20,274 and $19,430 for such services during
fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
Company believes the cost of freight delivered to the
stores is comparable to the prices charged by publishers
and other third-party freight distributors. Argix
subleased warehouse space from the Company in
Jamesburg, New Jersey. The Company charged Argix
$1,993, $1,828 and $1,822 for such subleased space
and other operating costs incurred on its behalf during
fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Since 1993, the Company has used AEC One Stop
Group, Inc. (AEC) as its primary music and DVD/video
supplier and to provide a music and video database.
AEC is one of the largest wholesale distributors of
music and DVD/videos in the United States. In 1999,
AEC’s parent corporation was acquired by an investor
group in which Leonard Riggio was a minority investor.
The Company paid AEC $326,913, $309,702 and
$298,727 for merchandise purchased during fiscal
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In addition, during
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fiscal 2005, AEC spun-off their Digital on Demand
subsidiary, that provided the database equipment and
services to the Company. Leonard Riggio has a minority
interest in Digital on Demand. The Company paid
AEC/Digital on Demand $4,974, $6,206 and $4,211
for database equipment and services during fiscal 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company believes the
cost charged by AEC/Digital on Demand are
comparable to other suppliers. Amounts payable to
AEC for merchandise purchased were $35,416 and
$30,837 as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005,
respectively.
The items discussed below in the following paragraphs
are eliminated in consolidation subsequent to the
Merger in fiscal 2003 with Barnes & Noble.com.
The Company subleased to Barnes & Noble.com
approximately one-third of a 300,000 square-foot
warehouse facility located in New Jersey. The Company
had received from Barnes & Noble.com $558 for such
subleased space during fiscal 2003. The amount paid
by Barnes & Noble.com to the Company approximates
the cost per square foot paid by the Company as a
tenant pursuant to the lease of the space from an
unaffiliated third party.
The Company had an agreement (the Supply
Agreement) with Barnes & Noble.com whereby the
Company charged Barnes & Noble.com the costs
associated with such purchases plus incremental
overhead incurred by the Company in connection with
providing such inventory. The Supply Agreement was
subject to certain termination provisions. Barnes &
Noble.com purchased $113,758 of merchandise from
the Company during fiscal 2003. The Company
charged Barnes & Noble.com incremental fees of
$3,303 during fiscal 2003.
The Company entered into agreements whereby Barnes
& Noble.com received various services from the
Company, including, among others, services for payroll
processing, benefits administration, insurance
(property, casualty, medical, dental, life, etc.), tax,
traffic, fulfillment and telecommunications. In
accordance with the terms of such agreements, the
Company received fees in an amount equal to the direct
costs plus incremental expenses associated with
providing such services. The Company received $2,025
for such services during fiscal 2003.
In 2002, the Company through its wholly owned
subsidiary, Marketing Services (Minnesota) Corp.,
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entered into an agreement with Barnes & Noble.com
for marketing services, which includes the issuance of
gift cards. Under this agreement, the Company paid
Barnes & Noble.com $18,153 during fiscal 2003,
which represents reimbursement for gift cards
purchased in a Barnes & Noble store and redeemed on
the Barnes & Noble.com Web site.
Barnes & Noble.com, through its fulfillment centers,
ships various customer orders for the Company to its
retail stores as well as to the Company’s customers’
homes. Barnes & Noble.com charged the Company the
costs associated with such shipments plus any
incremental overhead incurred by Barnes & Noble.com
to process these orders. The Company paid Barnes &
Noble.com $2,662 for shipping and handling during
fiscal 2003. The Company and Barnes & Noble.com
had an agreement whereby the Company paid a
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commission on all items ordered by customers at the
Company’s stores and shipped directly to customers’
homes by Barnes & Noble.com. Commissions paid for
these sales were $1,505 during fiscal 2003.

18. DIVIDENDS
On August 18, 2005, the Company announced it had
authorized the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend
of $0.15 per share. Quarterly cash dividends of $0.15
per share were paid on September 30, 2005 to
stockholders of record at the close of business on
September 9, 2005, on December 30, 2005 to
stockholders of record at the close of business of
December 9, 2005 and on March 31, 2006 to
stockholders of record at the close of business on
March 10, 2006. During fiscal 2004, the Company did
not declare or pay any cash dividends or make
distributions or payments on its commom stock.

[ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS continued ]
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19. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
A summary of quarterly financial information for each of the last two fiscal years is as follows:
Fiscal 2005 Quarter Ended
On or About

Sales
Gross profit
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
(net of income tax)
Net earnings

April
2005

July
2005

October
2005

January
2006

Total Fiscal
Year 2005

$ 1,097,170
$ 327,351
$
9,906

1,170,800
344,399
13,467

1,081,785
320,418
327

1,753,249
577,827
122,981

5,103,004
1,569,995
146,681

$
$

9,906

13,467

327

122,981

146,681

Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations

$

0.14
-

0.20
-

-

1.88
-

2.17
-

Net earnings

$

0.14

0.20

-

1.88

2.17

Diluted earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations

$

0.13
-

0.18
-

-

1.76
-

2.03
-

Net earnings

$

0.13

0.18

-

1.76

2.03

April
2004

July
2004

October
2004

January
2005

Total Fiscal
Year 2004

Sales
Gross profit
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
(net of income tax)
Net earnings
Basic earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations

$ 1,058,197
$ 307,783
$
7,229

1,100,349
324,630
3,851

1,042,277
308,754
(3)

1,672,772
545,809
112,298

4,873,595
1,486,976
123,375

Fiscal 2004 Quarter Ended
On or About

$
$

4,215
11,444

4,883
8,734

7,572
7,569

3,331
115,629

20,001
143,376

$

0.11
0.06

0.06
0.07

—
0.11

1.60
0.05

1.79
0.29

Net earnings

$

0.17

0.13

0.11

1.65

2.08

Diluted earnings per common share:
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations

$

0.10
0.06

0.05
0.07

—
0.10

1.52
0.04

1.68
0.25

Net earnings

$

0.16

0.12

0.10

1.56

1.93
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors
Barnes & Noble, Inc.
New York, New York
We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of Barnes & Noble, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 and the
related consolidated statements of operations, changes
in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three fiscal years in the period ended January 28, 2006.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Barnes & Noble, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of January 28, 2006 and January 29,
2005 and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period
ended January 28, 2006, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Barnes & Noble,
Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial
reporting as of January 28, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report
dated March 31, 2006 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.
As explained in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company has retroactively revised prior
period amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of cash flows for cash of discontinued
operations and for net cash flows from discontinued
operations, and has separately disclosed the operating,
investing, and financing portions of such cash flows.

BDO Seidman, LLP
New York, New York
March 31, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors
Barnes & Noble, Inc.
New York, New York
We have audited management’s assessment, included in
the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item
8, that Barnes & Noble, Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of January
28, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Management of
Barnes & Noble, Inc. is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion
on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting of Barnes & Noble, Inc. based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, management’s assessment that Barnes
& Noble, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of January 28, 2006, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO. Also, in our opinion, Barnes &
Noble, Inc. maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of
January 28, 2006, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
COSO.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of
Barnes & Noble, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 28,
2006 and January 29, 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes in
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three fiscal years in the period ended January 28, 2006,
and our report dated March 31, 2006 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

BDO Seidman, LLP
New York, New York
March 31, 2006

47

48

Barnes &
& Noble,
Noble, Inc.
Barnes
Inc.

2 0 0 5 A n n u a l R e p o r t[

]B a r n e s
TK
■

& Noble, Inc.

2003 Annual
Annual Report
2005
Report

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Barnes & Noble, Inc. is responsible
for the contents of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which are prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The Consolidated Financial
Statements necessarily include amounts based on
judgments and estimates. Financial information
elsewhere in the Annual Report is consistent with that
in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The management of Barnes & Noble, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting, as such term is defined
in Exchange Act Rules13a-15(f ). Under the supervision
and with the participation of management, including
the principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control–Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on the Company’s
evaluation under the framework in Internal
Control–Integrated
Framework,
management
concluded that the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of January 28, 2006.
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of January 28, 2006 has been audited by BDO Seidman,
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report which accompanies the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company maintains a comprehensive accounting
system which includes controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the financial records and the protection of assets. An
internal audit staff is employed to regularly test and
evaluate both internal accounting controls and
operating procedures, including compliance with the
Company’s statement of policy regarding ethical and
lawful conduct. The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors composed of directors who are not members
of management, meets regularly with management, the
independent auditors and the internal auditors to
ensure that their respective responsibilities are properly
discharged. BDO Seidman, LLP and the Director of
Internal Audit have full and free independent access to
the Audit Committee. The role of BDO Seidman, LLP,
an independent registered public accounting firm, is to
provide an objective examination of the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the underlying transactions in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board. The report of BDO
Seidman, LLP accompanies the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

OTHER INFORMATION
The Company has included the Section 302
certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company as Exhibits
31.1 and 31.2 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for
fiscal 2005 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and the Company has submitted to the
New York Stock Exchange a certificate of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company certifying that he is
not aware of any violation by the Company of New
York Stock Exchange corporate governance listing
standards.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
BARNES & NOBLE, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BARNES & NOBLE, INC. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Leonard Riggio
Founder and Chairman
Barnes & Noble, Inc.

Leonard Riggio
Founder and Chairman

Stephen Riggio
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Barnes & Noble, Inc.
Matthew A. Berdon
Senior Partner
F. B. & Co., LLP
Michael J. Del Giudice
Senior Managing Director
Millennium Credit Markets LLC
William Dillard, II
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Dillard’s, Inc.
Irene R. Miller
Chief Executive Officer
Akim, Inc.
Margaret T. Monaco
Principal
Probus Advisors
William F. Reilly
Chief Executive Officer
Aurelian Communications
Michael N. Rosen
Partner
Bryan Cave LLP
William Sheluck, Jr.
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer
Nationar

Stephen Riggio
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mitchell S. Klipper
Chief Operating Officer
Marie J. Toulantis
Chief Executive Officer of Barnes & Noble.com
J. Alan Kahn
President of Barnes & Noble Publishing Group
Joseph J. Lombardi
Chief Financial Officer
William F. Duffy
Executive Vice President of Distribution and Logistics
Mary Ellen Keating
Senior Vice President of Corporate Communications
and Public Affairs
David S. Deason
Vice President of Barnes & Noble Development
Christopher Grady-Troia
Vice President and Chief Information Officer
Mark Bottini
Vice President and Director of Stores
Michelle Smith
Vice President of Human Resources
Michael N. Rosen
Secretary
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PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK
The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol BKS. The
following table sets forth, for the quarterly periods indicated, the high and low sales prices of the common stock on the
NYSE Composite Tape.
Fiscal Year

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

2005

$
$
$
$

2004

High

Low

High

Low

36.00
42.49
42.12
44.75

31.25
34.10
34.09
35.30

25.62
25.74
26.55
33.15

20.90
19.64
22.10
23.41

As of March 31, 2006 there were 66,297,741 shares of common stock outstanding held by 2,121 shareholders of
record.
On November 12, 2004, we distributed to our stockholders in the form of a dividend 0.4249 shares of GameStop Class
B common stock on each outstanding share of Barnes & Noble common stock. The common stock prices presented
above for periods before November 12, 2004 are restated stock prices and reflect the distribution of our ownership in
GameStop to our stockholders. The market prices were restated by dividing by 1.415, the same adjustment made by
Barnes & Noble to outstanding Barnes & Noble stock options to maintain the same aggregate intrinsic value of the
stock options as before the spin-off. See Note 2 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIVIDENDS
On August 18, 2005, Barnes & Noble’s Board of Directors authorized the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of
$0.15 per share. A dividend of $0.15 per share was paid on September 30, 2005, December 30, 2005 and on March
31, 2006.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Corporate Headquarters:
Barnes & Noble, Inc.
122 Fifth Avenue
New York, New York 10011
(212) 633-3300

Common Stock:
New York Stock Exchange, Symbol: BKS

Transfer Agent and Registrar:
The Bank of New York
Investor Services Department
P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, New York 10286
Stockholder Inquiries: (800) 524-4458
E-mail address: shareowners@bankofny.com
Web site: http://www.stockbny.com

Annual Meeting:
The Annual Meeting of the Company’s Stockholders
will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, June 7, 2006 at
Barnes & Noble Booksellers, Union Square, 33 East
17th Street, New York, New York.

Stockholder Services:
Inquiries from our stockholders and potential investors
are always welcome.
General financial information can be obtained via the
Internet by visiting the Company’s Corporate Web site:
www.barnesandnobleinc.com
Up-to-the-minute news about Barnes & Noble, requests
for Annual Reports, Form 10-K and 10-Q documents
and other financial information can be obtained tollfree by calling 1-888-BKS-NEWS.

Counsel:

All other inquiries should be directed to:

Bryan Cave LLP, New York, New York

Investor Relations Department, Barnes & Noble, Inc.
122 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10011
Phone: (212) 633-3489 Fax: (212) 675-0413

Independent Public Accountants:
BDO Seidman, LLP, New York, New York

BARNES & NOBLE BESTSELLERS 2005
TOP 10 HARDCOVER FICTION

Harry Potter and the Half-Blood Prince J.K. Rowling, Scholastic
(3,281,616)

The Da Vinci Code Dan Brown, Doubleday (358,061)
The Broker John Grisham, Doubleday (203,432)
The Mermaid Chair Sue Monk Kidd, Viking (164,073)
The Five People You Meet in Heaven Mitch Albom, Hyperion
(162,223)

The Historian Elizabeth Kostova, Little, Brown (150,696)
True Believer Nicholas Sparks,Warner Books (146,456)
Mary Mary James Patterson, Little, Brown (124,225)
At First Sight Nicholas Sparks, Warner Books (117,593)
Honeymoon James Patterson and Howard Roughan, Little,
Brown (115,368)

TOP 10 HARDCOVER NONFICTION
1776 David McCullough, Simon & Schuster (335,044)
The World is Flat Thomas L. Friedman, Farrar, Straus & Giroux
(303,491)
The Purpose Driven Life Rick Warren, Zondervan (266,084)
Blink Malcolm Gladwell, Little, Brown (254,304)
Your Best Life Now Joel Osteen, Warner Books (234,658)
Freakonomics Steven D. Levitt and Stephen J. Dubner, William
Morrow (234,507)
Natural Cures “They” Don’t Want You To Know About Kevin Trudeau,
Alliance (221,914)
You: The Owner’s Manual Michael F. Roizen, M.D. and Mehmet
C. Oz, M.D., HarperCollins (204,523)
French Women Don’t Get Fat Mireille Guiliano, Knopf (169,468)
He’s Just Not That Into You Greg Behrendt and Liz Tuccillo, Simon
Spotlight Entertainment (158,554)
TOP 10 PAPERBACK NONFICTION
A Million Little Pieces James Frey, Anchor Books (539,105)
Bad Cat Jim Edgar, Workman Publishing (140,371)
What to Expect When You’re Expecting Heidi Murkoff, Arlene
Eisenberg & Sandee Hathaway, B.S.N., Workman
Publishing (129,488)
Rich Dad, Poor Dad Robert T. Kiyosaki with Sharon L. Lechter,
C.P.A., Warner Books (124,237)
The South Beach Diet Arthur Agatston, M.D., Rodale Press
(121,616)
The Tipping Point Malcolm Gladwell, Back Bay Books
(117,063)
Why Do Men Have Nipples? Mark Leyner and Billy Goldberg,
M.D., Three Rivers Press (114,548)
1,000 Places to See Before You Die Patricia Schultz, Workman
Publishing (105,291)
The Official SAT Study Guide CollegeBoard, CollegeBoard (98,543)
Rachael Ray 365: No Repeats Rachael Ray, Clarkson Potter
(95,659)

TOP 10 PAPERBACK FICTION
The Kite Runner Khaled Hosseini, Riverhead Books (510,904)
Angels & Demons Dan Brown, Pocket Books (282,128)
Harry Potter & the Order of the Phoenix J.K. Rowling, Scholastic
(263,756)
The Chronicles of Narnia C.S. Lewis, HarperCollins (260,002)
The Secret Life of Bees Sue Monk Kidd, Penguin (257,592)
Wicked Gregory Maguire, ReganBooks (248,505)
The Curious Incident of the Dog in the Night-Time Mark Haddon,
Vintage (214,619)
My Sister’s Keeper Jodi Picoult, Washington Square Press
(195,436)
Harry Potter and the Goblet of Fire J.K. Rowling, Scholastic
(194,060)
Memoirs of a Geisha Arthur Golden, Vintage (186,759)
TOP 10 JUVENILE

Harry Potter and the Half-Blood Prince J.K. Rowling, Scholastic
(3,281,616)

Eldest Christopher Paolini, Knopf (412,704)
The Sisterhood of the Traveling Pants Ann Brashares, Delacorte Press
(324,822)

The Second Summer of the Sisterhood Ann Brashares, Delacorte
Press (320,702)

Girls in Pants Ann Brashares, Delacorte Press (319,648)
The Penultimate Peril Lemony Snicket, HarperCollins (286,722)
Runny Babbit Shel Silverstein, HarperCollins (268,060)
Harry Potter and the Order of the Phoenix J.K. Rowling, Scholastic
(263,756)

The Giving Tree Shel Silverstein, HarperCollins (260,552)
Eragon Christopher Paolini, Knopf (242,220)
SLEEPERS

Freakonomics Steven D. Levitt and Stephen J. Dubner,
William Morrow (234,507)

The Historian Elizabeth Kostova, Little, Brown (150,696)
Marley & Me John Grogan, William Morrow (117,479)
On Bullshit Harry G. Frankfurt, Princeton University Press
(82,557)

Jeffrey Gitomer’s Little Red Book of Selling Jeffrey Gitomer, Bard
Press (73,581)

The FairTax Book Neal Boortz and Congressman John Linder,
ReganBooks (54,797)

The Elements of Style Illustrated William Strunk, E. B. White,
William Strunk, Jr., and Maira Kalman (Illustrator),
Penguin (32,548)
The Tender Bar J.R. Moehringer, Hyperion (21,418)
PostSecret Frank Warren, ReganBooks (11,569)
Misquoting Jesus Bart D. Ehrman, HarperCollins (6,903)

2005 AWARD WINNERS
PULITZER PRIZE

NATIONAL BOOK CRITICS CIRCLE AWARDS

CALDECOTT MEDAL (2006)

Gilead

The March

The Hello, Goodbye Window

Marilynne Robinson
Picador
Fiction

E.L. Doctorow
Random House
Fiction

Norton Juster and Chris Raschka
(Illustrator)
Michael di Capua Books
Hyperion

Washington’s Crossing

Them

David Hackett Fischer
Oxford University Press
History

Francine du Plessix Gray
Penguin
Biography

De Kooning

American Prometheus

Mark Stevens and Annalyn Swan
Knopf
Biography

Kai Bird and Martin J. Sherwin
Knopf
Autobiography

Delights & Shadows

The Undiscovered Country

Julius Lester
Hyperion

Ted Kooser
Copper Canyon Press
Poetry

William Logan
Columbia University Press
Criticism

THE HUGO AWARD
Best Novel:

Ghost Wars

Voices from Chernobyl

Steve Coll
Penguin
General Non-Fiction

Svetlana Alexievich
Dalkey Archive Press
General Non-Fiction

Doubt

Refusing Heaven

California Girl

John Patrick Shanley
Theatre Communications Group
Drama

Jack Gilbert
Knopf
Poetry

T. Jefferson Parker
William Morrow

THE NATIONAL BOOK AWARDS

DISCOVER AWARDS

Europe Central

Beasts of No Nation

William T. Vollmann
Viking
Fiction

Uzodinma Iweala
HarperCollins
Fiction

The Year of Magical Thinking

One Bullet Away

Joan Didion
Knopf
Non-Fiction

Nathaniel Fick
Houghton Mifflin
Non-Fiction

Migration

THE MAN BOOKER PRIZE

W.S. Merwin
Copper Canyon Press
Poetry

The Sea

NEWBERY MEDAL (2006)

Criss Cross
Lynne Rae Perkins
Greenwillow Books

CORETTA SCOTT KING AUTHOR AWARD
(2006)

Day of Tears

Jonathan Strange & Mr. Norrell

John Banville
Knopf

Susanna Clarke
Bloomsbury USA

THE EDGAR AWARD
Best Novel:
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